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“Board”

[E=g]

llCEO"
[T AR L |

“China” or “PRC”
[ E

“CG Code”
[(EERSFAIN]

“Company”, “our Company”,

“Group”, “our Group”,

” o«

“China Leon”, “we” or “us”
[ARTE]] - [AREER] -
[R5 ] =k [ 34

“Controlling Shareholders”

[ R AR

“Director(s)”

[E%]

“HKS”
[Tl

“Huaxia Lihong”

[EE 5]

BREARLME

the “Corporate Governancre Code” se

15 CEMRAD M4 Em (R XA

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited
company incorporated under the laws of the
29 July 2015 and except where the context indicated ott
BRE N BRBRERBERAR - —KK2015%F7 A29H R
HEAEREERFAR (RMXESEIEIN) EHRERE

Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying, Mr. LIU Yi, Leon Cornerstone Investment Holding
Limited, Swan Stone Investment Holding Limited and Hawk Flying Investment Holding
Limited
EEmALE KRB Z L 3P %L E - Leon Cornerstone Investment Holding
Limited * Swan Stone Investment Holding Limited }2Hawk Flying Investment Holding
Limited

the director(s) of the Company
BARAES

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BEBEEE® B

Beijing Huaxia Lihong Commodity Inspection Co., Ltd. (dt RIEE 1B mE Rie AR A
A]), a company incorporated in the PRC on 19 January 2009 and an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of our Company
B REENREmRBRERAA
RRARKHEZEEZEWE AR

—ZHKR2009F1 A19BEFBEEMKIHAE - &
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ffering of its Shares

Shares are listed and from which dealings therein are
the Stock Exchange

BEm WEZBREENBIMEE
‘irig of Securities on the Stock Exchange (as amended
SREEET)

Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” set out in
e Listing Rules

FIOFTE 2 A LM BT AESETER R ZHHRETA)

\atio imittee of the Company
uary 2017 to 31 December 2017

5E201741 B1HE2017412A318
4 ectus of the Company dated 29 June 2016
A7 B HA201646 A29H BB =2

remuneration committee of the Company

SARFMFHEE S

“Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

EREEEEER - AR%K

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

BEBEPIESN B (RBHRHERD) - BTRERT - BRIAEMT N EK

ordinary share(s) of par value US$0.00005 each in the issued share capital of our
Company
AR RIE FEITIRAF AR E(E0.00005% JTHY) I E AR

“Shareholder(s)” holder(s) of Shares

[ 3R EROFE A

“Stock Exchange” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Bk 32 P EEBBMERGMARAR]

“%” per cent

[%] EAD
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We operate in the indep
which serves a number of do
the coal industry. The coal testing
derivatively affected by the nationwide
which in turn may be affected by the genera
in China. Independent coal testing and inspection se
emerged with the abolition of the state control over ¢
in the early 2000s and has experienced steady growth in rece

years due to the formation of an increasingly market-oriented cc_lg
industry. -

We believe that the following strengths of our Company differentiate
us from our competitors and help us compete effectively in the
industry: (1) the largest coal testing and inspection services
provider in China with a proven record of success and steady
growth potential; (2) a steadily growing coal testing and inspection
industry benefiting from China’s tightened regulations over coal
quality and the liberalization of the coal industry; (3) long-term
stable business relationship with large and reputable customers in
China’s coal industry; (4) stringent quality control and standardized
operational measures to ensure stellar service standards; (5)
an extensive network of service centers strategically positioned
primarily at major coal-trade ports in China; (6) strong research
and development capabilities focused primarily on improving
testing procedures in an evolving industry environment; and (7)
a visionary and dedicated management team highly esteemed by
industry associations.

Our long-term objective is to become a leading world-class coal
testing and inspection services provider. To that end, we intend to
implement a business strategy with the following key components:
(1) further solidify our leadership in coal testing and inspection
industry; (2) upgrade and expand our network of service centers;
(3) further strengthen our research and development efforts; and (4)
pursue strategic acquisition or investment to enhance our service
capabilities and expand our service coverage.

m China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2017
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Reve
Gross Pro
Profit before
Income tax expens
Profit for the year
Profit attribute to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

0134
~ RMB'000
ARETTT AR

Total assets BERE 95,641 137,38 19

Total liabilities BB 23,138 27,123 134,
Equity attributable to ISYNCIE/ 2PN

the owners of the parent Bl 71,995 110,066 60,838

m China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2017



.

e annual
1 December

' for power
régarding
leved. Since
duct .o | of the coal
redué‘hon by using
n#é‘ntdanted production
oroduction facilities will
Sreen development of
and efficient utilization
. The abovementioned

/ “A \ b ;

f){ pmng Period and recorded a
» g Ij'iers revenue of the Group was
5 RME'@&(?_mllhon in 2017, representing
/.; respectively, as compared to 2016.
f ts i t of resources and plans proactively
S, namely internationalization, diversity,
formatio an effort to lay a solid foundation for the
in oﬂsﬁw sine s grdwth in the future. The Board has passed
\,JI’@ tfor the proPosed payment of the final dividend of RMB0.025
r this year. 1 R
N,
, hq-Group established 3 new domestic service centers and 4 new
overseas service centers. In order to extend our business to the upstream
i@ downstream portions of the coal industry chain, we established a
rvice center in Shaanxi, which is an upstream coal production area,
and established service centers in inland downstream coal markets such

eqgIC

In 20

as Jiangyin and Hubei, hence, the coverage of our testing services was
expanded from seaborne coal trade to inland coal trade, a blue ocean
market. In 2017, we introduced experienced overseas management team
and built the Group’s overseas business platforms by establishing four
overseas service centers in Singapore, Malaysia, India and Indonesia
by way of acquisition or self-establishment, as such we completed the
service network layout in Southeast Asia. We also expanded our import
and export inspection business to minerals and petrochemicals in addition
to coal, which marked the beginning of the Group’s diversified business
development.
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ﬁ% °
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and developi
namely robot sa
management and co
Company’s major service
intelligent upgrade in the Group
in technology and cost and be a
innovation.

great opportunities for the inspection industry in which we operate. Qua
testing organizations have natural advantages when engaging in s‘u'r;ply ’
chain quality management services and the Company has explored and
implemented this new business model in 2017. We believe that, the supply
chain quality management business is set to become a new source of profit

growth for the Group and is the key direction for our business innovation.

S
Looking ahead to 2018, the Group’s strategic planning is basically clear, E2018 * %E‘g%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ‘ﬁ)ﬁﬁ%ﬁ}ﬁ#‘&&r } p
expansion into the upstream coal market and inland coal market, innovation EhimisEERRMmENHE fHpEpEe

in supply chain quality management business, intelligent R&D and upgrade IR AT B ae ke R 4B s Y & BE (L A EE AN
in coal testing, international network and diversified business development Fam - BB St EBREEEEER
will be the Group’s important directions for strategic development. In BBERBESEERE A o £ BB EEE R
addition to solidifying our leading position in the coal testing and inspection MipE TR BB ER - K AR
industry, the Group is committed to developing itself into an international It ZbtE=FEERBRGEE  BEKE
and diversified independent quality assurance service provider and creating EaENEENRELDR |

sustainable and optimized return for investors!

Mr. LI Xiangli EFER
Chairman of the Board Z@ Ak E
23 March 2018 201843 H23H
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PO Box 1350
Grand Cayman KY1
Cayman Islands

Headquarters and Pr
Business in the PRC

Building No. 78,

Zhuyuan Road,

No. 12 District,

Tianzhu Free Trade Zone,
Beijing

Principal Place of Business in Hong
Kong

Unit F, 16/F, Neich Tower
128 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Principal Banker

China Construction Bank, Jing’an Zhuang Sub-branch
Building 6, Time International Building

Courtyard 6, Shuguang West Lane

Chaoyang District

Beijing, China

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17/F Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

m China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2017

BEET
ST 12855
L RE16EFE

FERIT
PEERIBITHLHERT
PR R

5@

BE Yt 7R 265k P

s [ BIR KE 65k g

EEROBFETTRE

BARRELEEZLARAA
BEBET
ERANBER1835E
EMBA7E1712-1716F



EREEEB

R » RTUE » 3y » B BERIEAT
BEFRIR

FREEE 5157

16 AR E15E1509=

BRER

RIRBEEREFR AR
BEBRIR

BRE125%
EBRITH L
18121803-4%

TERDBFETE

Estera Trust (Cayman) Limited
Clifton House, 75 Fort Street
PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman lIslands

&g ae:id
1586
#8 vk

www.huaxialihong.com

cmnwpnepenad ovesis [N



iR

Executive Directors

BITES

Mr. LI Xiangli
FRMEE

Ms. ZHANG Aiying Vice president and e

REHEZ L BlAEFRANITES

Mr. LIU Yi 58 Vice president and executi

2 BB ITES

Non-executive Director ; -
FHITES : p

Mr. WANG Gang 48 Non-executive Director 18 January 2016
TMEE FEHITES 201641 H13H

Independent non-executive

Directors

BYFHTES

Mr. YANG Rongbing 38 Independent non-executive Director 18 June 2016
e B A B IEMITES 201656 H18H
Mr. WANG Zichen 51 Independent non-executive Director 18 June 2016
TEESSE BN IERITES 201656 418H
Mr. ZHAO Hong 57 Independent non-executive Director 18 June 2016
FEUT S A BYIEHITES 201646 H18H
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e spouse of

he strategic
He is also the

d our Group
Director on 13

el ce in the coal testing

- Group, from October

rJeCt manager of China
on G ”'(FP'&’? R ()

d testing ‘ " pany that serves different

dl )){ for the establishment of the

'7;;.1\ inspe 1. From January 1989 to September

-0 \"‘h /f ’ insp_e'qt_ien technology center of

i K ‘!'\ \1\ nt ;ction and Quarantine Bureau (F£ 5

F O AR R R =) vas promoted to a deputy director in April

04, res oh'.""' for coa st?ng and inspection.
A N W _‘,._'\‘E-ll b ‘

\ ained a bachelor’s degree in chemistry from Hebei Normal

L

i .
U AERD#EERBE) in the PRC in July 1985, and a master's

_ '-; n materials science from Yanshan University (&1L AZR)
in the PRC in December 1999. He obtained the qualification as a
seﬁior engineer in November 2001 granted by State Administration
for Entry-Exit Inspection and Quarantine of the PRC (B 5 A%
RRIBER).

Ms. ZHANG Aiying, aged 55, is a vice president of the
Company and an executive Director. She is the spouse of Mr.
LI Xiangli. Ms. Zhang is primarily responsible for overall business
management, overall management of the procurement and human
resources department of our Group. She is also a member of
the Remuneration Committee. Ms. Zhang was appointed as our
executive Director on 13 January 2016. She is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company.

r Management

HITES

ZEFEE 5558  BEERRBESRRITH
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RE FZEEEASEEKBRENBERERE -
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) MIEEKRE  AERVERERTAE B
1989F1 A £2008F 98  RZXE85H AER
BRI B R AR BT AR O TAE - 20044
AREHBEIEE - BE BB KRR -

19857 H + AP )b A& &b &2
HEF B 1999F 128 » B E | K&
MERIZ0NEL2E6 2000F 11 AZEBERH
ABERBRRERR TERATRMER -

RERLL 555 ARARIBEHFNTE
= REERFANEENER  T2HER
SEEBEBEEUNMRERANERBNE
BEE - HTAFMEZESKE - N2016%F1
A13E » R TEZERPITES - HTMEE
ARAETHEBARNES -
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Normal College ()7

Mr. LIU Yi, aged 53, is
an executive Director. He i
management of sales, quality contro
our Group in February 2010 as deputy
Lihong, and was appointed as our exec
January 2016. He is also a director of a subsidiary o

Mr. Liu has approximately 29 years of experience in the coal testi
and inspection industry. Prior to joining our Group, from Sgapte?nkber
1988 to January 2010, Mr. Liu worked with Qinhuangdao Entry-Exit'
Inspection and Quarantine Bureau (X2 & £ A FE R E&EE) and
was promoted to the director of the coal inspection technology
center in September 2003, responsible for coal inspection. From

-

July 1987 to September 1988, he was a teacher at Hebei Building BT - .

Materials Vocational and Technical College (7] 3k 244 Bk 3 % fiiy 2 fr'-» :
Bz), and was responsible for teaching analytical chemistry. . Y

Mr. Liu obtained a master’s degree in materials engineering from 2006F 11 A + Bl A e B 3 1L KRBk
Yanshan University (#LLAE2) in the PRC in November 2006. TREBEITEA 1998F6 A KRR EmRH

He obtained the qualification as a senior engineer in June 1998 BEREBARNREELEERBRBEER) BT
granted by National Commodity Inspection Bureau (B8R & BHRTIRMER -

#E8 ), currently known as General Administration of Quality
Supervision, Inspection and Quarantine of the PRC (FIZRE £ &

BRimRan).

m China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2017



ctor. He is
¢ relation
"l
led as our

ind try ‘Since
g,enéFaI ‘manager
fent department of
[RAF) (“CICY), a
Gt ertification service,
ral gement of operation,
s@i} is a substantial
y holding 11.63% of the
| ug’h::its' subsidiary. From
g served as the director of
1ent of Zhejiang Entry-Exit
reau (4 /Itl:'.)\t%&’?%ﬁﬁﬁ /B) and
/ -minégg'_ment of the inspection
A m December 2003 to January
deputy general manager of China
n & I on Group Zhejiang Co., Ltd. (REIRBR
p Jﬁ E"A‘qﬁjl Comﬁany primarily engaged in inspection
certification ser\‘ii_g"_e:,l\'and was responsible for inspection and
/;._ management. From December 1999 to December 2008,
V a c- ed as the head of Zhejiang Entry-Exit Inspection and
Quarantine Firm (?ﬁxlﬁkﬁ*ﬁ?ﬁ*ﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁ) and was responsible
!ir its overall management.

Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’s degree in electrical engineering
from Zhejiang University (4L AZ8) in the PRC in July 1992. He
also obtained a master’s degree in finance from Zhejiang University
in the PRC in July 2005.

Management

FHUTES

FHKE - 4858 FFATES > TERERAAL
SERHETEMBENERSIES - TREN2016
F1AIBHEZERINTES -

FRERRATEEBLELEH - 5201148
A FEE—HEATBRRBABRAR ([
BARD(—REEXERBRRBRERBHQ
A)) BRI RERREPRERE EE\LE‘
RS - BT %Ilwzéfmﬁkﬁ“ B oA
BEARANEEZRE - ;@Eféﬁ}%'&aﬂ%ﬁz}&
RAEETRAFA11.63% - 5201018
F2011F7A  TEEBNIEARRRERE
PRBREEREET  BERREEENEEE
I : B2003F 128 E2010618 » TAEET
PRERBRAEERINIARAR (—RE2HR
ERBARERBOHAA) SIBKE  BERR
RBEEEE 819996128 F£2003F12A -
FREEEHIEASRBBEETHAR
BEHEREEE

THRARI92F7AERBIN T AEESER
TRREAEBLT o K IN2005%F7 A 8 R BT
AERGSRBELTEN o
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whilst oversees a list of key operational departn
fmance investment, human resources and Iegal Mr. \

with relevant areas with regard to the media mdustry, including

financial markets and tax planning. Before joining SMI Holdings

in 2010, Mr. Yang had acquired deep experiences in financial
management, capital planning, internal control, investment and
financing and capital financial strategy from serving various financial
and investment roles in state-owned enterprises and institutions
such as Beijing Golden Tide Group Co., Ltd. ((tR&HFEEF
fR 2 7)), Foreign Economic Cooperation Office under Ministry of
Environmental Protection (RZRIRFEIREZBEINE EF L), Center
for Development of Trade and Control of Investment in Europe (EX

NEEFBIREETEP L), etc.

Mr. Yang obtained a bachelor’s degree in accounting from China
University of Mining and Technology (Bl A &) in the PRC
in July 2002, and a MBA from Central University of Finance and
Economics (FF R EF & K 2Z) in the PRC in June 2011. He qualified as
a medium-level accountant in December 2008 certified by Beijing
Municipal Bureau of Personnel (it =TT A= D).

m China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2017
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- Committee

ted as an

‘ mg W|th China
a,nd is currently a
.-1an1|n Fifth Avenue
_), responsible for

. e
ffware engineering from

stronautics (1 R ZEMK
|ned the qualification as a
[ 7 ﬁ) granted by the Ministry of
o0p rﬁ of the PRC (#F # AR 27N
He a_l$<a. obtained the qualification as
y China State Construction Engineering

" & ‘-"‘- ' T) in December 2008.
\ ﬂed 57, is an independent non-executive
\ | "r‘. Zhao is p:]rr!arlly responsible for providing independent
j d judgment to the Board. He is also the chairman of the
\” I?Ohmlttee and a member of the Audit Committee
and the N'omlnatlon Committee. Mr. Zhao was appointed as an

|E1dependent non-executive Director on 18 June 2016.

Mr. Zhao has extensive experience in thermal engineering. Since
March 1991, Mr. Zhao has been serving as a teacher in College of
. Energy Engineering of Zhejiang University and has been responsible
for teaching and scientific research.

Mr. Zhao obtained a bachelor’s degree in thermal energy from
Zhejiang University in the PRC in July 1984, and a master’s degree
in engineering from Zhejiang University in the PRC in January
1991. He obtained the qualification as a professor in December
2001 granted by Personnel Department of Zhejiang Province (47
L8 AEE).

r Management
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Executive

Ms. KANG Aiyun,
Ms. Kang is primarily res
development of our Group. Ms.
2016 as a vice president of our
general manager of Huaxia Lihong.

Ms. Kang has over 11 years of experience in co
to joining our Group, from August 2009 to Januar‘il
Kang worked with the Sales Company of China Coal Gro
(Sales Center of China Coal Corporation) (FEEBHE A
(PR A S5 57 00), a state-owned company mainly engaged in
coal trading, and served as a vice manager of the No. 1 Sales
Department from August 2009 to July 2012, the manager of the
No. 1 Sales Department from July 2012 to January 2016, and
assistant to the general manager from August 2013 to January
2016, and was mainly responsible for sales and marketing. From
March 2007 to August 2009, she served as a vice manager of

BRAT (—REIEREEFAERRSHE

sales department in Coal Sales Center of China Coal Energy Co., BAR) ERMEDLNNEDHIRLE - &
Ltd. (P B E R DB R A R]), a state-owned company mainly HHHENTHEHE - §2003%9 8 £200743
engaged in coal production and trading, and she was responsible A EEATEREXRELARE (—REER
for sales and marketing. From September 2003 to March 2007, ERERXGHOBEAELR) —HEEIATLE
she served as a client manager of the No. 2 Sales Department of B -BREHEERTEFPBERK - B1997F10A £
China Coal Import and Export Co., Ltd. (fEIEREH D AF), a 2003F 98  ERTAFBREXRTXENOE
state-owned company mainly engaged in coal trading, and was EArMEER - HF - 5200063 A £200349
responsible for sales and client relationship. From October 1997 ARES#EEBTIE - 1997F 10 £20004F3 A
to September 2003, she was an employee in China Coal Industry RARHRE R —REBKIHLIE - B1995F7H
Import and Export Co., Ltd. (F B ik T ¥# H O£ B A 7)) in trade F1997F10A ML T AHPBEIKE R TEE L
headquarters from March 2000 to September 2003, in corporate A& A (—REBEREERSSHBEEAR)
planning department and No. 1 Business Department from October BERIARIRAERS -

1997 to March 2000. From July 1995 to October 1997, she was
an employee in policy research office of Coal Industry Import and
Export Corporation (B Rk T2 04 A7), a state-owned
company mainly engaged in coal trading.
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to July 2006,
Certification & Inspe
AR AT, and was resp
inspection management.

Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor’s deg
a master’s degree in chemistry from Tsing
in the PRC in July 2004. He obtained the qu
analysis engineer ({25 1T T#2AM) in September
by Beijing Intermediate Professional and Technical
Evaluation Committee.
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_“\J wer generation
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5p! e'senting"an increase
1\ 017, he targets regarding
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tlon implemented by
mmission of the PRC
) ed productlon facilities,
da ed production facilities
se of advanced production
Inner er Mongolia accelerated, among
N capacity in Shaanxi region was
_ ated:"that, the demand for power
rdw mdre'rapidly in 2018, while coal
\ 'olume may grow slightly. The structural
« al prod ct|on capacity and the anticipation of
orgel Bé an diestructurlng of the coal-fired power industry
uture will increase the concentration of customers of the
sstry, that is the market share of coal enterprises with
.l mlne resources and advanced production facilities
W1LF increase. In general, the industry and market environment in
2018 will be favourable to the future business development of the
Company.

" \

The Company recorded a revenue of RMB200.9 million and a net
profit of RMB34.7 million in 2017, representing an increase of 7.8%
and 3.2%, respectively, as compared to 2016. The gross profit
margin of the Group increased from 51.7% in 2016 to 55.1% in
2017.

In 2017, the Group increased its input of resources based on the
established international, diversified, automation and informatization
strategies, and achieved the following results:

(1) Improved the domestic service network, established three
new domestic service centers in Jiangyin, Shaanxi and
Hubei with its scope of inspection services extending to
inland coal trade and the number of domestic service
centers reaching 11.

d Analysis

BN ™5 O E

2017TF KRB EZT B - 8LIRFRK/NIEE
- HESMURES BEENERESEER
RIER - 2017F 2 EEERLILR6.5% -
HANERBESRLIERS2% ' REEE34.5
fBHE - FILLI8RS3.2%  FE2017HFEREE
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EfE BN ERERNEEIEXERBER
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ot ERE IS R AR - RMTERT - 20184
BENEREEMRER  BREBENKZE
R/ MEIG R o RIARAE IR E B A B BT
BIIERHMEATEDR  bBEBERITERRP
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BRI TISMHEEIE M) - BEMS - 20185F
TEMMBRBFT DRI RRERERE o

A A2017F 815 WA A R ¥200.98 & 7T -
FAEARBIM.TEE T 0 D REB2016F 18
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51.7%IEZE2017FH55.1% °
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FR
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confirmed that such s
friendly, which filled the
the PRC and reached interna
R&D project “Robotic Automati
developed.

(4) A new generation of informatization system “L LI
1.0” self-developed by us officially commenced operati_l_

in August 2017, under which informatization management
and control over coal inspection is achieved throughout the

entire business process from acceptance of appointment to
issuance of certificates.

Business Strategies and Future
Outlook

Coal is the cornerstone for safeguarding the safe and stable supply
of energy in the PRC, the strategic approach on energy “diversified
energy development based on coal resources” and the position of
coal as the primary energy source will remain unchanged. Following
the implementation of national strategy concerning high-quality
development in the PRC, through innovative ways in technology
such as bid data and automation, green development of coal
resources, supply quality improvement and clean utilization will be
the direction of green development in the future. We believe that,
coal testing and inspection is still our core business at this stage,
while scientific research innovation, international expansion and
diversified development is our direction in the future. We intend
to further strengthen our leading position in the coal testing and
inspection industry through the following strategies and develop
into an international, diversified and technologically advanced third
party quality assurance service provider.

m China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2017
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to inland coal trade, which is a market

>d by test-Tﬁé_ and inspection organizations.

eaports located in Shandong province and

o

u side China, we are selectively establishing service centers
(o) 'b{“t'ay,ifje testing services for coal and other commodities in
'co_qn"[rie.s_with abundant coal export volume which represent large
potential markets for us. Currently, the Company has constructed
four service centers in Southeast Asia. In future, we will continue
I to construct other overseas service centers, and obtain more
shares of business of clients from these countries by leveraging our
service capabilities of our international network and provide testing
and inspection business for other commodities other than coal.

Further strengthen our capabilities in scientific
research and innovation

We believe that technical improvements are critical to our level
of service and our ability to achieve competitive advantages in
the market, as such, we deploy adequate resources to advance
our research and development efforts. We plan to continue to
strengthen our internal research as well as collaboration with
third-party institutions to develop automated preparation and
testing system as well as information based business management
system, which will allow us to significantly reduce labor costs,
minimize human error and improve efficiency for our services.

d Analysis
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cooperation to en
expand our service cove

In 2016 and before, we expanded
organic growth. From 2017, we rapid
markets, established overseas service n
inspection service areas of other commodities by
outstanding personnel and teams or partners by way of in
holding. We believe that, there are still abundant acquisition and
cooperation opportunities in the testing and inspection indus
and we focus on opportunities that can enhance our service
capabilities or coverage of services. The key criteria we apply' in
selecting acquisition or investment targets include their market
size, customer base, technical capabilities and management team.
If there are suitable targets and opportunities in the testing and mﬁ*%}’é ﬁﬁ R
inspection market of other commodities (for example minerals, HE— T HBERMARS L N & E

petrochemicals) in the future, we would also consider. We are of MABERL - Zxik T?ZTTI ?EE’J%
the opinion that the abovementioned acquisitions and joint ventures {REBERRTES R °

can further expand our service capabilities and coverage, thereby
helping the Company become an international, diversified and
technologically advanced independent quality assurance service
provider.
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an increase in business 7.8% ° ZIENMDEERRBBARZIERILA
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2017 2016
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Port where p
Group successfu
its business expansio

Gross Profit and Gross Prc

The Group’s gross profit increased &
RMB96.4 million in 2016 to approxime
2017. The gross profit margin increased fro
55.1% in 2017, which was primarily because that th
volume of the Group’s testing services at Huanghua
port charges were relatively high decreased, and in the mean time,
the business volume of the Group’s testing services at Tangs'ﬁén 4
Port where port charges were relatively low increased. s

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses increased by 33.9% REBMHE KD £2016%F

from approximately RMB2.1 million in 2016 to approximately 2ABEBIEE2017TFNHARK27TEE T
RMB2.7 million in 2017. The increase in the Group’s selling HIE 533.9% © AEEPE RS WL WMNE
and distribution expenses was primarily attributable to (1) the EHANAABZAIIEMN : RRQEEABA
increased open tender expenses; and (2) increased labor costs 2 & ELAREE I 1 A0S A TR A AN o

from increased headcount and compensation base for sales forces.

Administrative Expenses THEX

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by 19.8% from AEBMITHRESZ #2016 FMHARES32H
approximately RMB53.2 million in 2016 to approximately RMB63.7 BT E2017FHMHIARKG3.7E ST © iR
million in 2017. The increase in the Group’s administrative expenses 519.8% o REBTHASZEMNEZHR()RE
was primarily attributable to (1) the increase in overall employees’ DEBES HMNGFBE I INEINAT BEE AR
remuneration packages, overseas’ talent acquisitions to meet the EAREERERREAT K QFEEF R
requirement of the Group’s expansion strategy; (2) the depreciation P& : X(3) 2017 FHAFEE A AL 0 -

of newly-added housing and properties; and (3) the increase in
research and development costs in 2017.
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pefnber 2017, income tax expense
ately RMB8.4 million, increased by

3 l:.{ on as Compared with approximately

RMBSS 6 m|II|on in 2016 to approxmately RMB34.7 million in
2017, generally consistent with the growth of the Group’s business.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consist primarily of buildings,
vehicles, equipment and construction in progress. The Group had
property, plant and equipment of RMB59.6 million and RMB106.5
million as at 31 December 2016 and 2017, respectively. The
increase as at 31 December 2017 was primarily due to the addition
of office properties during 2017.

Investment Properties

Investment properties consist of a commercial property in Beijing,
which was originally purchased at RMB25.5 million in April 2014,
and Room 202 and 302 of Wanxingyuan Yingang in Cangzhou,
which were originally purchased at RMB1.3 million in August 2011.
The investment properties of the Group had a carrying amount of
RMB22.3 million and RMB22.0 million as at 31 December 2016
and 2017, respectively.

d Analysis

Htpax
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represent rental pa
construction in process, and
process and land auction pro
Group’s prepayments, deposits and o
approximately RMB9.3 million from app
as at 31 December 2016 to approximately
31 December 2017, primarily due to the transfer
rights in Caofeidian from intangible assets to other re :
The non-current portion of the Group’s prepayments, deposits a|_
other receivables decreased from approximately RMB15.1 million B
as at 31 December 2016 to approximately RMB0.9 million as at :
31 December 2017, the main cause of which was that prepayment
arising from newly acquired property was offset by transfer from
prepayment for purchasing property to fixed assets in 2017.

Available-for-sale Investments AHEERE ‘ :
The Group’s available-for-sale investments primarily represent AREBMAHBERETEEFRAFERS A

low-risk financial products purchased from commercial banks EERTEENERBRESEER - R20165F

using its cash on hand. As at 31 December 2016 and 2017, the K&2017512A318  AJIHEEREN AR E

fair value of our available-for-sale investments reached RMB9.0 BEORAARKIOBEETREARK21.36E

million and RMB21.3 million, respectively. The increase in the JC > M2017F12A381H » AEE A EE &
Group’s available-for-sale investments as at 31 December 2017 BEMITANBAREESCKRKEESE TERE

was because the Group utilized idle funds to purchase certain mm °

financial products.
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N perating activities of
an nd other borrowing of

r w:present amounts payable

CE r 2016 and 2017, the Group
E_34" nillion and RMB3.7 million,
in the Group s trade payables as at

rir.'narilil:‘r'epresent advance from customers, accrued salaries,
- wages and benefits, other taxes payable and other payables. As
~at 31 December 2016 and 2017, the Group had advance from
customers, other payables and accruals of RMB28.6 million and
RMB31.7 million. As at 31 December 2017, the increase in the
Group’s advance from customers, other payables and accruals
was attributable to the increase in the other payables resulted from
continuous development of construction in progress.

Interest-bearing Bank Loans

The Group had interest-bearing bank loans of nil and RMB16.2
million as at 31 December 2016 and 2017, respectively. The
increase in the Group’s interest-bearing bank loans was due to the
bank loan arising from purchase of properties in 2017.

d Analysis
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The Group hac
31 December 2017.

position and has suffi
meet its foreseeable capital e

Treasury Management and Fu

The primary objectives of our capital mane

in light of changes in economic conditions and the risks of the
underlying assets. To maintain or adjust our capital structure, we
may adjust dividend payments to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or raise funds through issuing new equity.

We have a prudent treasury operation to manage our investments
in financial products. We only invest in low risk financial instruments

% - ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁﬂﬂﬂmﬁﬁﬁﬁtr

from reputable commercial banks that can be redeemed on a TA#TRE  REZ4RMIAENER _k'ﬁ?ir
same-day basis or otherwise within a short notice period, including BAEANER  FEEEFRTERITNEGE

primarily bank-sponsored wealth management products, such as o B EETISESNREEFRK
bonds, money market funds and interbank deposits.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities RETEBISRERE

The Group had net cash flows from operating activities of M2016% K2017F - AEELE EHMER
approximately RMB50.3 million and RMB45.3 million in 2016 and EMEFEIHNABARBS03BETLEAR
2017, respectively. The decrease in the Group’s cash flows from A5 3EBTT - AEEKEEHMSHERE
operating activities was primarily due to the increase in research A E BERE201 7 F I BEAL AL A1 o

and development costs during 2017.
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and equipment and land use rights.
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-.\ up monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.

calcula i_c?n of gearing ratio is based on total debt divided by
",F.:. Q nultiplied by 100.0%. Total debt is calculated as
es —b1 g bank loan” plus “interest-bearing other borrowing”
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position. Total
pital is calculated as “total equity” as shown in the consolidated

Tatement of financial position.
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2017 2016

' 20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ET T ARBFIT

Total debt B 17,742 10,000

Total equity U e G 198,298 171,650

Gearing Ratio BEARBELE 8.9% 5.8%
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and the Grot

In addition, the Grou
basis, and its expos
management of the Grou
its existing and prospective
customers have adequate financ
source of the financing. No collateral

The Group’s other financial assets include othe
available-for-sale financial instruments and cash
equivalents. The credit risk of these financial assets ari
default of the counterparty. The maximum exposure to credit ril
equals to the carrying amounts of these assets. p—

Foreign Exchange Risk

The exposure of our Group to foreign exchange risk was minimal
during the year ended 31 December 2017 and hence the Group
did not hedge against any fluctuation in foreign currency during
the year.

Significant Investments

The Group did not have any significant investments during the year.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries
and Associated Companies

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group did not
have any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
associated companies.

Charges on Assets

As at 31 December 2017, certain of the Group’s investment
properties with a carrying value of RMB21.1 million were pledged to
obtain a banking facility from a bank amounting to RMB15 million,
which had not been utilised as at 31 December 2017. In addition,
the Group purchased two buildings from an independent third party
at RMB37.7 million. The building was pledged by this third party
before the purchase, and as of 31 December 2017, the pledge
had not been released (as at 31 December 2016: no assets were
charged).
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o"nrd Composmon

 As at the date of this annual report, the Board
comprises seven members, which consist of three
executive Directors, one non-executive Director, and
three independent non-executive Directors.

. ’ The Board of the Company comprises the following
directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Xiangli
Ms. ZHANG Aiying
Mr. LIU Yi

Non-executive Director
Mr. WANG Gang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. YANG Rongbing
Mr. WANG Zichen
Mr. ZHAO Hong
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A4.

leading internatio
arrangements.

Appointment and Re

All Directors are appointed for a
subject to renewal upon expiry of the ex
Each of the executive Directors, namely Mr. LI Xiangli
Ms. ZHANG Aiying and Mr. LIU Yi is appointed f

a term of three years commencing from 13 -Jaﬁuary_ ’

2016 pursuant to their service contracts. The non-
executive Directors (including the independent non-
executive Directors) are appointed for a term of
three years from their respective appointment dates
pursuant to their letters of appointment.

According to the Articles, one third of the Directors
for the time being (if their number is not three or a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at
each AGM. The Directors who shall retire in each
year will be those who have been longest in the
office since their last re-election or appointment
but as between persons who become or were last
re-elected Directors on the same day those to retire
will (unless they otherwise agree among themselves)
be determined by lot. The retiring Directors should
be eligible for re-election at the relevant AGM. In
addition, any new Director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the
first general meeting of the Company after his/her
appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting, whereas any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next following AGM and shall then
be eligible for re-election. The Director appointed by
the Board as aforesaid shall be eligible for re-election
at the relevant general meeting.
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relevant
all be supplemented
y plant sites and
t of the Company.

> continually updated with

il ents, and the business

s to facilitate ‘the discharge of

1“'1{-’/ and professional

/jb{» Directors are arranged whenever

reading material on new or

laws and regulations applicable

e \A{&R\deq to Directors from time
ym'ig. and reference.

o

details of th gini'ng they received in each financial

' yéar-'fQ the Company’s maintenance of proper
N training_;lrfecords of the Directors. According to
‘thq‘t?a_ining records currently maintained by the
mpany, during the year, the Directors have
. 'Corr'TpIied with the code provision A.6.5 of the CG
Code on participation in continuous professional
training as follows:

A5.

EENRIRSEEER

BEMEESTHHANEERES
EREIEAARES - AER
HEE THRARBNESLNEE
AR m2MEC LR KA
EERERTNEEENER - &%
FHREANERARANERR
FERMFR  YERARFRHNZR
ERASEMHE -

REESEATHESEREZZN
ERERAREB RGN
RMER UERBRTERFOR
B EFVERETHEI NS
THERER - WIN EFETHE
REERR AR BN ERE
BERIEBEHHEHEMN K -
UHEEEER2E -

EEANEVRERRARRE
REDEXZOFIFE - UHAR
NEIFEEFMNHEEEICE -
REARBBAMEFENFIC
% BERAFECDBR(LE
EasTRI) BA.6.5&T RGN 2
BETSIREERE

Reading regulatory

Attending training
on regulatory
development,

directors’ duties or
other relevant topics

updates or corporate
governance related
materials or
materials relevant to
directors’ duties

HEBREERE MEEERTEME
Type of training/ =3, EEREY HOoXEAREBENERS
education BEBR HaEmE =Bl HEERSEEBEAME
Mr. LI Xiangli 2 [ 55 4 v v
Ms. ZHANG Aiying REHLL v v
Mr. LIU Yi 23 5 & v 4
Mr. WANG Gang T4 v 4
Mr. YANG Rongbing B EREA v 4
Mr. WANG Zichen THELRE v/ v/
Mr. ZHAO Hong HEUT S A v/ v

REL B RBIERERAT 2017 RS



A7.

Executive Direct

Mr. LI Xiangli

Ms. ZHANG Alying

Mr. LIU Yi 2w

Non-executive Director: FUTES:

Mr. WANG Gang THRE

Independent non-executive BUFHTES:
Directors:

Mr. YANG Rongbing BERERE

Mr. WANG Zichen IHERE

Mr. ZHAO Hong kA

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as
its own code of conduct regarding dealings in the
securities of the Company by the Directors and
the Company’s senior management who, because
of their office or employment, are likely to possess
inside information of the Company and/or securities.
Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors
and they have confirmed their compliance with the
Model Code during the year ended 31 December
2017. In addition, no incident of non-compliance
of the Model Code by the senior management of
the Company was noted during the year ended 31
December 2017.

In case when the Company is aware of any restricted
period for dealings in the Company’s securities,
the Company will notify its Directors and senior
management in advance.
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__)gchange's website
>mpany’s website. All

'- hamely Mr. ZHAO Hong
h E commlttee) and Mr. WANG Zichen,
ndﬁ‘QO ‘executive Director, namely Ms. ZHANG

AN Aiying. '[hroughout the year, the Company has met
! ' ‘th,e-Li's‘ting' Rule requirements of having the majority
i N '_f’,_\e Remuneration Committee members being

indé‘pendent non-executive Directors as well as
having the committee chaired by an independent
non-executive Director.

The primary function of the Remuneration
Committee is to develop remuneration policies of
our Directors, evaluate the performance, make
recommendations on the remuneration packages of
our Directors and senior management and evaluate
and make recommendations on employee benefit
arrangements. During the year, the Remuneration
Committee met once to review the remuneration
of the Directors and senior management of the
Company as well as the total amount of remuneration
paid by the Company in year 2017.

The attendance records of each committee member
in the Remuneration Committee meeting held during
the year are set out in section A6 above.

>
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B2.

contained in this an

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee compri
three members, being one executive Director
Mr. LI Xiangli (chairman of the committee), and two

independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.

WANG Zichen and Mr. ZHAO Hong. Throughout the
year, the Company has met the code provision A.5.1
of having a majority of the committee members being
independent non-executive Directors and having the
committee chaired by the chairman of the Board.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board; identifying individual suitably qualified to
become members of the Board and select or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorship; making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and succession planning of Directors;
and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors, as well as reviewing the
board diversity policy.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy
which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board in terms of skills, professional experience,
educational background, knowledge, culture,
independence, age and gender. In accordance with
the board diversity policy, a truly diverse Board will
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s ining
H'." Board
ing into

d composition
board diVersity

ation criteria and
‘of Directors and
_ - non-executive
evie annually its terms of

ectiveness in the discharge of
e

e ssessed in accordance with

ng Rules. The Company has
Jal confirmation of independence

ule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each
dependent non-executive directors, and the
/ is of the view that all independent non-
) Directors meet the guidelines for assessing
~ independent set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
"j-far_]d are independent.

The Nomination Committee considered an
appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the
Board is maintained and has not set any measurable
objective for implementing diversity on the Board.
The Nomination Committee also considered that
the Directors are rich in knowledge, experience
and background and their outstanding skills in their
respective expertise can meet the development
needs of the Company.

The attendance records of each committee member
in the Nomination Committee meetings are set out
in section A6 above.
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auditor, as well as reviewing arrangements wk

can be used by the employees of the Company,

in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control
or other matters.

The Audit Committee is also responsible for
performing the functions set out in the code provision
D.3.1 of the CG Code. Its main duties include
developing and reviewing the Group’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board; reviewing and
monitoring the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management of the Group; and reviewing the
Group’s compliance with the CG code and the
Model Code and the disclosure in the corporate
governance report to be contained in the Company’s
annual reports.
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3 nittee two
\\;\9'-‘:“'#” . m financial
\ /ear ended 31

\ --,h onths
"'.:- also
x)‘ management
/  of external

T f revie 'd' the

0 mahagément,

es on' compliance
( the
the Company S

< . each committee member
meetings are set out in

onsibilities for
ng in Respect of
tatements

\ ;ﬂp rs | \_/e acknowledged their responsibilities for
ep: \ '-E jmaﬁcial statements of the Group for the year.

The B‘oérd is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment of annual and interim

reports and other financial disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.
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The Compa
to ensure effe
operation, inclu
surveying and sampling s
tests in our laboratories, ad
financial reporting and reco
compliance with applicable laws a
environmental protection and workplace sa

The internal audit department monitors complian
with policies and procedures and the effectiveness of

risk management and internal control structures across

the Group and its principal divisions. The internal audit
department reports directly to the Audit Committee and
ensure the internal controls are in place and functioning
properly as intended.

For 2017, the Board through the Audit Committee had
conducted an annual review on the systems of internal
control and risk management of the Company. The review
covered material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions of
the Group. Areas of improvement have been identified and
appropriate measures have been put in place to manage the
risks. The improvement of the systems of risk management
and internal control is an ongoing process and the Board
maintains a continuing commitment to strengthen the
Company’s control environment and processes.

The Company formulated the inside information policy. The
Company regularly reminds the directors and employees
about due compliance with all policies regarding the inside
information (as defined under the SFO). Also, the Company
keeps directors, senior management and employees
appraised of the latest regulatory updates. The Company
shall prepare or update appropriate guidelines or policies to
ensure the compliance with regulatory requirements.
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(“Ms.
“Ms. Hui Yin
"\' ntil she
% Assistant

roup Limited,
8 February
as't J_:._:C-_or'npany
> primary contact person

th Ms. Li and Ms. Hui
and assistant to

N N
:/ were responsible for
d on corporate governance

~
t

A

had confirmed that each

than 15 hours of relevant

and Auditor’s

‘the external auditor of the Company,
, about their reporting responsibilities on the
c|'al statements for the year is set out in
ded “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this

The fees paid/payable to Ernst & Young in respect of audit
services and non-audit services for the year are analyzed
below:

DEWE

RAEAFE REEBZIT ([Frt])
R2017F7A7TEBEE R AW ER - &
iz L+ ([t BZETARRMW
= HEHR2018F2H28H BT - FF
ZLEREXKFECERBEEFTRAF
(—R2ARGHER) cBIEE - 8
2018F2F28H#E - FRE B L ERE
TLEZTARRAME - RAEE - =
RITHFZLITAARBINEEHZAL
RBANBGE  HEEESWERART
TTBRHBNE -

RAFE  FHLLRHARXLTEERRT
MEEENEFTERERR - FrLR
MEZTESERRBNAFREERZ D
K15/ s BRI E X5 -

S8 A% B8 B T2 A 4 B 5 T

ZUNCIPINiY 73 2 Gk S S ]
FAARRAFEEMBRENBERTH
BRFNAFERS [BILZBE RS ]

—ffi e

RAFER L KRS R
EitIRIE MIEBAREEN BN E
BAotrmT e

Fees paid/payable

BR/EANER

RMB’000

Service Category BR 3% 48 51 ARETT

Audit o

Annual audit service FREERS 850
Non-audit B

Interim review service BB RS 350

Total A&F 1,200
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business developments an
information are available for inspecti

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-g
with Shareholders and in particular, through AGMs a
other general meetings. Board members, in particular,

the chairmen of Board committees or their d'e'legat(_es,'

appropriate management executives and external auditor
will use all reasonable efforts to attend AGMs and to answer
shareholders’ questions.

Shareholders’ Rights

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue
at general meetings, including the election of individual
Directors. All resolutions put forward at general meetings
will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and
poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company
(www.huaxialihong.com) and the Stock Exchange after each
general meeting. The Articles allow a Shareholder entitled
to attend and vote at a general meeting to appoint a proxy,
who need not be a Shareholder, to attend the meeting and
vote thereat on his/her/its behalf.
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y the procedures set out in the

'1," 0 the Shareholders’ right in proposing persons
. 1 " e

il lectio Directors, please refer to the procedures

\_‘ ¢ e website of the Company.

- ] ‘,'

Du ng.:’cﬁe yéa{f', the Company has not made any changes to

the Articles. An up-to-date version of the Articles is available
~on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Shareholders may refer to the Articles for further details of
the rights of Shareholders.
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investment h

An analysis of the
the year by principal a

“Management Discussion ai
Note 5 and 6 to the consolidate

Business Review

A review of the Group’s business during the year, w
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
Group, an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial
performance indicators, particulars of important events_af‘fe‘cgfring ’
the Group during the year, principal risks and uncertainties of the
Group’s business, and an indication of likely future developments
in the Group’s business, could be found in the sections headed

[EEE

“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and B EH F 2R :
Analysis” in this annual report. In addition, a discussion on ﬁﬂ: fréxﬁ}ﬁ_"”‘f Eﬁ’\ [ 3 ’
relationships with its key stakeholders is included in the sections EEIA - ZBERIBKESSHREN—F

headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” and “Corporate 4 ‘-
Governance Report” in this annual report. The review forms part
of this directors’ report.

Financial Summary BB E

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and AEEGIAEVBREFEN A RAEEARE
non-controlling interests of the Group, for the last five financial B BERIFERESOBEEH N AFEERE
years is set out on page 6 of this annual report. F6H °
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I dividend of
1 31 December

egister of Members

of the Corr_'lpany will be closed during the

m Monday, 7 May 2018 to Friday, 11 May 2018, both

ays inclusive and during which period no share transfer will

.A‘Bg"effecte'd, for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’

~ entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM. In order to
be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged for registration with the Company’s share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong, not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 4 May 2018; and

(if) from Thursday, 17 May 2018 to Monday, 21 May 2018,
both days inclusive and during which period no share
transfer will be effected, for the purpose of ascertaining
shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed final dividend.
In order to establish entitlements to the proposed final
dividend, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration
with the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 16
May 2018.
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The Group is highly aware of the
protection and has not noted any
any relevant laws and regulations in rel
including health and safety, workplace conditions, e
and the environment. During the production procesg,
has implemented environmental protection measures, including
procedures related to energy use control, waste water and wasl‘e

air discharge management. The Group has also encouraged staff

to be environment friendly at work by consuming the electricity
and paper according to actual needs, so as to reduce energy
consumption and minimize unnecessary waste.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares
of the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
redeemed or sold any Shares for the year 2017.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 84 of this annual report and Note 30
to the financial statements, respectively.

As at December 31, 2017, the Company’s distributable reserves
were RMB85.1 million.
Donations

The Group did not make any charitable donations during the year
(2016: nil).
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Executive

Each of our executi
with our Company pur
executive Director for an i
18 January 2016.

Non-executive Directors and Indepen
Directors

Our non-executive Director has entered into a letter of
with our Company pursuant to which he has been appointec
an initial term of three years commencing from 13 January 2016.

Each of our Independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with our Company pursuant to which he
has been appointed for an initial term of three years commencing

from 18 June 2016. ,ﬁ

i -l. .
Our non-executive Director is not entitled to any director’s fee. ENTESERENNEMNESHES c SBIIE
Each of our Independent non-executive Directors is entitled to a HITESHFFAREREESHES 100,000 7T °
director’s fee of HK$100,000 per annum.
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basqd on their responsibilities
) rchalrman of Board committees).
,f"" entive- based employee emolument

Iti- _Iayered evaluation system which
d ’ma'nagement goals.

U eration (infﬁluding fees, salaries and other benefits,
e-related bonuses and pension scheme contributions)
( aid 0 1e Directors in aggregate for the year ended 31 December
20‘17 was approxmately RMB3.3 million.

The remuneration (including salaries and other benefits,
i performance-related bonuses and pension scheme contributions)
paid to our Group’s five highest paid individuals in aggregate for
the year ended 31 December 2017 was approximately RMB5.6
million.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, no emoluments were
paid by our Group to any Director or any of the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining our Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the Directors has waived
any emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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Except as disclo
are payable, for the
to or on behalf of any

Permitted Indemnity

In accordance with the definition of se
Ordinance, the permitted indemnity prov
director’s and officer’s liability insurance was effe
remained valid until the date of this annual report.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements and Contracts ;

No transactions, arrangements or contract of significance to the
business of the Group which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.

Competing Business

During the year, none of the Directors or the controlling shareholder
of the Company or their respective associates are considered to be
interested in businesses which compete or are likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with our core businesses.

Deed of Non-competition

Reference is made to the non-competition undertakings given by
the Controlling Shareholders in favour of the Company disclosed
in the Prospectus. The Controlling Shareholders have confirmed
to the Company that they have complied with the non-competition
undertakings during the Period. The independent non-executive
Directors have conducted such review for the Period, and also
reviewed the relevant undertakings and are satisfied that such
undertakings have been complied with.
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= N alres
=

| nay be issued upon exercise of all
\ @s to be granted under this Option Scheme (the “Share
- Option(s)’) a ) %r share option schemes of our Company
‘which the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing
Jles are ap plicable) shall not exceed 40,000,000 Shares
(repréSfentinQ- 10% of the aggregate of the Shares in issue
on the date the Shares commence trading on the Stock
Exchange).

&

'i'he overall limit on the number of Shares which shall be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted, and
yet to be exercised, under the Option Scheme, and other
share option schemes of our Company (and to which the
provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules are applicable),
shall not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to
time.
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(v)

date of such further grant representing in aggregate o
1% of the total number of Shares in issue, suqh further

grant must be separately approved by the Shareholders at

the general meeting with such Eligible Employee and his/
her close associates abstaining from voting.

Validity and Vesting Period of the Share Options

In respect of the 8,000,000 Share Options granted on 4 July
2017, the Share Options are exercisable for a period of five
years commencing from the vesting date and expiring at
the close of business on the last day of the five year period.
Not more than 30% of the Share Options will be vested on
4 July 2018. Not more than 30% of the Share Options will
be vested on 4 July 2019. Not more than 40% of the Share
Options will be vested on 4 July 2020.
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price for any Business Day
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); and

_ _" value of a Share on the date of grant of
evant Share Option.
h . ™

i) Present status of the Option Scheme

A"s' at'rthe date of this annual report, 8,000,000 Options had
been granted under the Option Scheme of which 250,000
~were forfeited during the year.

Application has been made to the Listing Committee for the
listing of, and permission to deal in, the Shares which may
fall to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the Options to
be granted under the Option Scheme, being 400,000,000
Shares in total.

(vi)

(vii)
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4 July 2017
017%7 A48 [EE

Notes:
1. The above Share Options vest in one to three years and
ends on a date which is not later than five years from the
date of offer of the Share Options or the expiry date of the
Option Scheme, if earlier
2, The Company received a consideration of HK$1.00 from . RARE
each of the grantee for the Share Options granted during AU ER 1B 1.007%
the year. 3
3. No Share Options were exercised or cancelled during the & NG A A R AR A A TR SR8 o
year.
4, Please refer to Note 29 on the fair value of Share Options 4, EAAFEANERENBRENDREE
granted during the year. B2 29 -
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 arrangement to which the

' iiectors or Chief Executive of the
be_r: 2017, the interests and short
ors or chief executive of the Company in
' S, underlyi'rj'g‘ shares or debentures of the Company or
'sSociated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
C ¢ (a) WhICh were required to be notified to the Company
aﬁd the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or (b) which were required, under Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to in that section, or (c) which were
required under the Model Code to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange, were as follows:
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Ms. ZHANG Aiying (Notes 2, 4,
RERLZ T (ffig2 - 4-5)

%I%mmh
Mr. LIU Yi (2I3) (Notes 2, 6)

B E (BiF2 - 6)
S5 - AT HRAFAENER

REEE R
Notes:
(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in our Shares.

(2) On 31 January 2016, Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying and Mr.
LIU Yi entered into an acting-in-concert deed to acknowledge and
confirm that they are parties acting in concert in respect of each
of the members of our Group during and since the three years
ended 31 December 2013, 2014 and 2015 and continue after
the date of the deed. Pursuant to the deed, Ms. ZHANG Aiying
and Mr. LIU Yi shall support Mr. LI Xiangli’s decisions on material
matters in relation to the operation and management of our Group
by exercising their voting rights at the meetings of the shareholders
and boards of the members of our Group in accordance with the
decision of Mr. LI Xiangli. For details, see in the section headed
“Relationship with Controlling Shareholders — Our Controlling
Shareholders Acting in Concert” in the Prospectus. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying and Mr. LIU Yi are deemed
to be interested in our Shares which are interested by each other.
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anc
of Pal
to be kept f

Name of Shareholder

BRERER

s

Ms. WEI Yajuan (Note 2)
BB+ (K15t2)

Leon Investment (Note 3)
Leon Investment (#1:£3)

Swan Stone (Note 4)
Swan Stone (##7#4)

Hawk Flying (Note 5)
Hawk Flying (#7i%5)

China Certification & Inspection
Group Co., Ltd. (FE#%ERE
(%E) BR2AA) (“CCIC™)
(Note 6)

PERRRE (RE) ARAF]
([P ERBRRIZEE]) (#t6)

China Inspection Company
Limited (Bl 58 H IR A &)
(“CIC") (Note 6)

P ERER AR A A
(Tirall) (Kize)

China Dragon Inspection &
Certification (H.K.) Limited
( “China Dragon”) (Note 6)
EMBRRE (F8)
BRAR (T8l (Kate)

Interests of spouse

FoiEtEas

Beneficial owner

EnBEEA

Beneficial owner

ERmBEEA

Beneficial owner

EmBEEA

Interests of a controlled corporation

R AL

Interests of a controlled corporation

R AL

Beneficial owner

m China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2017

35,550,000 (L)

46,500,000 (L)

46,500,000 (L)

46,500,000 (L)

11.63%

11.63%

11.63%



Approximate
percentage of
issued share

Number of capital of
Shares the Company
LA RARE #IT

ROBE REANBNEIL

23,700,000 (L) 5.93%
23,700,000 (L) 5.93%
23,700,000 (L) 5.93%
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Swan Stone is be
By virtue of the SFO,
in our Shares held by Sw.

5) Hawk Flying is beneficially and wholly
virtue of the SFO, Mr. LIU Yi is deeme
Shares held by Hawk Flying.

(6) China Dragon is a subsidiary of CIC, which is a subsidiary of CCIC.
By virtue of the SFO, CIC and CCIC are deemed to be interested
in our Shares held by China Dragon.

(7) New Virtue is beneficially and wholly-owned by Mr. LI Dexin. By (7) C />
Virtue of the SFO, Mr. LI Dexin is deemed to be interested in our RIR(EHR PR - ZF5EH
Shares held by New Virtue. M New VirtueFr E’\JZ'-VZ\\'_E 3 4
% - - A
(8)  Ms. ZHENG Guangping is the spouse of Mr. LI Dexin. By virtue of B BAFREIEZFRHELENRE - RECGE
the SFO, Ms. ZHENG Guangping is deemed to be interested in our FREEEA) - BAFLEHERNEE
Shares which are interested by Mr. LI Dexin. T EREARRNARRRG R IEA R
Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of Directors, B EXFT BRSNS ESATARA - 120174
as at 31 December 2017, no persons own interests or short 127318 - BIEA TN REBRO P HES
positions in the Shares and relevant shares recorded in the register FEARRAIRE (BH LG %D £3361FA
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of FTHREECMOERIOAR XRE(EF LY
the SFO or interests or short positions required to be disclosed E1RGI) EXVERE2 M 37 #BZA A AN 2 7] M B 52
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 FIRBENREEIORE °

and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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oNsi “é-,of state-owned
panies, coal distribution
COI panies. Customers of the

O_Q‘f the Group’s total revenue. The Group’s
accounted for approximately 48.9% of the

the year under review, the Group’s largest supplier accounted
pproximately 24.6% of the Group’s total cost of sales. The
'p's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 55.2%
of the Group’s total cost of sales.

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, their
associates or Shareholders holding more than 5% Shares had
any interest in the five largest customers or five largest suppliers
of the Group.
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many of which &
categorized as (1) B
political risk; (3)

successfully maintain our business relationship
customers. Our business may be indirectly affected b
development of China’s coal Industry. Our expansion plansr_l;z
future acquisitions may entail certain risks and challenges.

Economic and Political Risk

The economic, political and social conditions of China could affect
our business, financial condition and results of operations. Any
slowdown in the Chinese economy may affect the demand for
power generation and the coal consumption volume and result in
a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations
and financial condition.

Financial Risk

The Group is exposed to discontinued or reduced preferential tax
treatments, insufficient insurance coverage, interest rate, foreign
currency in the normal course of business.

People Risk

Our business depends on the continued service of our senior
executives, and our business may be severely disrupted if we lose
their services.
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sﬁpﬁﬁers. We review this
ther any supplier should
i new supplier, we generally
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mendatlons We typically maintain
i ach type of our major equipment,
I ervices to minimize potential disruption of
‘ air ourcing stability and secure competitive
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\&ee%

/ iéﬁ‘D;e'cembEr 31, 2017, the Group had 707 employees

-}J in total. The Group’s employee compensation includes base

4 salary, bonuses and cash subsidies. In general, we determine
employee compensation based on each employee’s performance,
qualifications, position and seniority. We are subject to social
insurance contribution plans organized by PRC local governments.
In accordance with the relevant national and local social welfare
and housing reserve fund laws and regulations, we are required
to pay, on behalf of our employees, monthly social insurance
premiums covering basic pension insurance, basic medical
insurance, unemployment insurance, employment injury insurance,
maternity insurance and housing reserve fund.

For the year, the Company did not experience any strikes or
significant labor disputes which materially affected the operation
of the Company. The Company maintained good relationship with
its employees.
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under the Listing Rules. Details were disclosed in Note 36 tot
consolidated financial statements. e

Use of Proceeds from the Global
Offering

As set out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of
Proceeds” in the Prospectus and the updates in the announcement
of the Company dated 16 June 2017, the Company intends to use
the net proceeds from its global offering for the follow purpose:

- approximately 30.0% of the net proceeds will be used to
construct new service facilities at Huanghua port;

- approximately 25.0% of the net proceeds will be used to
construct new service facilities at Tangshan port;

- approximately 20.0% of the net proceeds will be used to
construct new service facilities at Tianjin port;

= approximately 15.0% of the net proceeds will be used for
strategic acquisition or investment; and

- approximately 10.0% of the net proceeds will be used to
fund general corporate purposes.
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The remaining

balance of

proceeds after

Amount Revised allocation of net the revised

utilized as at proceeds and its allocation as at

?‘"percentage the date of percentage the date of

t_o?al net proceeds this report of total net proceeds this report

Vi BEARERE
_.;F_-Eiﬁﬁmﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ HEARERS EHARBMENERE EHARAEN
 REFERETEABKLA ERANEE RAEFEREFRARN LA FrEsEsng
(Aoproximately (Approximately

~ (Aoproximately RMB millon) RMB millon) (Approximately RMB millon) RMB millon)
; (HEETAZE) (HEETAKY) (HEETAKE) (HEETAKE)
16.4 30.0% 132 16.4 30.0% 32

137 25.0% 122 137 25.0% 15

10.9 20.0% - - 0.0% 00

8.2 15.0% 8.2 19.1 35.0% 109

54 10.0% 54 54 10.0% 00

Totai At 54.6 100.0% 39.0 54.6 100.0% 15.6

Reasons for the Changes in Use of Proceeds

The Board resolved to adjust and reallocate the remaining balance
of RMB10.9 million of proceeds initially allocated to the investment
project of Tianjin port to the strategic acquisition or investment,
for the reasons and purposes set out below. The Board is of the
view that such adjustment and re-allocation will result in a more
efficient use of net proceeds from the global offering.

ERRERREAZNEE

ERUATEARER  EFSRECHZND
R RIZETH B A M ARREAKRE1,000
BTNRSETRAE  TEEBBEBRIRE
R BEXeRA LAFBERIEBEEN
HWHAEREEMSHRIBFE °
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believed that environmental factors would bring new unc rt
to the original plan of new service facilities construction
port in 2018, and carrying out the original plan would not
the most favorable choice. Therefore, the Board resolved to not
construct new service facilities at Tianjin port.

In order to seek better usage of net proceeds from the global
offering and protect the best interest of the shareholders of the
Company, the remaining balance of approximately RMB10.9 million
of 20% of net proceeds which were originally planned to use to
construct new service facilities at Tianjin port by the Company will
be reallocated. As of the date of this report, the proceeds were
not yet invested in this project.

According to our corporate strategy, we intend to enhance our
service capabilities and expand our service coverage through
investment in establishing subsidiaries, forming joint ventures with
local business partners and/or acquiring existing service facilities.
In 2017, through strategic acquisition or investment, we had set up
four overseas service centers and thence completed establishing
our Southeast Asian service network, bringing our business
towards globalization and diversification. In the future we plan to
increase our capital investment, continue to expand our overseas
network, and develop inspection and testing business for other
products. As at the date of this report, we have not yet entered
into at any new acquisition agreement.

The Board confirms that there is no material change in the business
nature of the Group as set out in the Prospectus and considers
that the above proposed changes in use of net proceeds is in the
best interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.
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Significant

The Group had no signi
the date of this annual repo

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Co
with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. It compris
including Mr. YANG Rongbing (chairman), Mr. WANG Ga
ZHAOQO Hong, all of whom are independent non-executive Direct
(including one independent non-executive Director who owns
appropriate professional qualifications or expertise in accounting
or relevant finance management).

The Audit Committee has discussed with the management of the BREE oD EARE : j
Group and reviewed this annual report and the financial results of FHRMAFERNRNER 25 EE4E - HIR

the Group for the year. It also discussed with the management of EBEEBN R NERERMT AR AITE I

the Group and reviewed the financial controls, risk management SEB R AIIEHIER o ,
and internal control system of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements of the of the Group which RABZEBEN L ket EHEAERE (B
are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting BAFE SRS LAY IR BN E B E B A IR ERE o

Standards for the year have been audited by Ernst & Young, the
auditor of the Company.

Auditor = EED

The Company appointed Ernst & Young as the auditor of the RNATR2017TEZ B L K 2AMBBEANA
Company in 2017. The proposal of re-appointing Ernst & Young BIRZEET c NABIBERKRBEERS FEEE
as the auditor of the Company will be put forward at the AGM for HEBEZ Ke T E& T IEEZESE IR S
consideration and approval. At EZBA -

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B X BE R

Ernst & Young
22/F, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue

EY:

To the shareholders of China Leon Inspection Holding
Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Leon Inspection Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 80 to 196, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”) issued by the International Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BYZBERE (&

To the shareholders of China Leon Inspection Holding Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BYZHERE (&)

To the shareholders of China Leon Inspection Holding Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)
Key audit matter
Impairment of trade and bills receivables

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had trade and bills
receivables of RMB22,894,000 before a provision for impairment
of RMB331,000.

The determination as to whether a trade or bill receivable is
collectable and whether a provision for impairment is required,
involves management judgement. Management considers
specific factors including the age of the balance, location of
customers, recent historical payment patterns and other available
information concerning the creditworthiness of customers.

The accounting policies and disclosures for impairment of trade
and bills receivables are included in notes 3 and 21 to the
financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

In order to evaluate management’s judgements, we assessed
whether balances were overdue by testing the ageing analysis
prepared by management. For the overdue balances, we then
considered relevant information impacting on their recovery,
including the customer’s historical payment patterns, evidence of
any disputes and whether any post year-end payments had been
received up to the date of completing our audit procedures.

For the trade and bills receivable balances where a provision for
impairment was recognised, we gained an understanding of the
rationale behind management’s judgement and evaluated the
provision made.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BYZBERE (&

To the shareholders of China Leon Inspection Holding Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter
Share option scheme

The Group has awarded share options to its employees under
a share option scheme. During the year ended 31 December
2017, the total amount of share-based payment cost was
RMB627,000, which was recognised in profit or loss.

The total cost of equity-settled transactions was measured with
reference to the fair value at the grant date. The fair value of
the granted share options was determined by the management
based on valuation performed by an external professional
valuer. The procedures over management’'s assessment
related to share-based payments were significant to our audit
because the assessment process was complex and involved
estimates. Management’s determination of the fair value
of the share options using a binomial option pricing model
involved assumptions in respect of future market and economic
conditions, estimated performance and the leaver rate.

The accounting policies and disclosures for the share-based
payment are included in note 2.4, 8 and 29 to the financial
statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

In order to evaluate management’s judgements, we examined
the acceptance letter signed by grantees and discussed with
management in relation to the terms and conditions of the share
options. We evaluated the valuation techniques and challenged
the underlying assumptions. We evaluated management’s
estimations of the number of employees who are expected to
leave and the probability of achievement of certain performance
conditions, which are the key estimations used in the calculation
of the share-based payment cost and recalculated the
amortisation of the equity-settled transactions during the year.
We also assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures
about share option scheme.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BYZBEM®E (&)

To the shareholders of China Leon Inspection Holding Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Other information included in the Annual
Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BYZBERE (&

To the shareholders of China Leon Inspection Holding Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BYZBEM®E (&)

To the shareholders of China Leon Inspection Holding Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements
(continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BYZBEM®E (&)

To the shareholders of China Leon Inspection Holding Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements
(continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Tong Ka Yan Augustine.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GeaBEEkHMEERER

Year ended 31 December 2017

EE2017F 12531 AILFE

2017 2016
201745 20164
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hrat ARBTFT AREF T
REVENUE PN 5 200,921 186,466
Cost of sales SHE A (90,237) (90,107)
Gross profit E A 110,684 96,359
Other income and gains Hi g A Uz 5 1,634 1,413
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HAX (2,749) (2,053)
Administrative expenses TEAX (63,704) (638,171)
Other expenses HAR (2,217) (2,938)
Finance costs BhE R AN 7 (690) (1,559)

Share of profits of: LA S IE G FE -
a joint venture EEDE 18 171 7
an associate B D5 19 8 =
PROFIT BEFORE TAX TR b 6 43,137 38,058
Income tax expense FriSHi i = 10 (8,434) (4,430)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRFE 34,703 33,628

Attributable to: AT RIARELN :

Owners of the parent ISYNCIEZEWN 35,595 33,628
Non-controlling interests =R = (892) -
34,703 33,628

m China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2017



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (continued)

GeBEakEMEEKkEEK (&)

Year ended 31 December 2017

HF2017F 12531 A1FF/E
2017 2016
20174 20164
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR¥FT AREToT
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hi2mE (FE), k=
(LOSS)/INCOME
Other comprehensive (loss)/income to RERIREENSBEEEREN
be reclassified to profit or loss in Hibhzm (EE), Wi
subsequent periods (net of tax): (FOBRFRSR) -
Exchange differences on translation of BHEGINETSHE =58
foreign operations (1,915) 2,473
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE FREMEE (FER) W
(LOSS)/INCOME FOR THE YEAR, HIBRH R
NET OF TAX (1,915) 2,473
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRE2EWREE
FOR THE YEAR 32,788 36,101
Attributable to: AR B IB (L :
Owners of the parent IS/NEIEY =N 33,680 36,101
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR = (892) -
32,788 36,101
EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREBREREEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EEERAER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
Basic and diluted EARREE RMB8.90 cents RMB9.69 cents
12 AR#8.90% AR¥9.69%
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR R

31 December 2017
2017F12H31H

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
R2017F 20164
12A31H 12H31H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hiat ARET T ARBFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB NEE 13 106,488 59,638
Investment properties KEYE 14 21,992 22,282
Prepaid land lease payments FE 15 1 3 FH & T 0E 15 6,198 10,370
Goodwill EES 16 572 572
Intangible assets ﬁﬁ;’é? 17 732 820
Investment in a joint venture A**ﬁ—t%ﬁ’]& 18 1,678 1,507
Investment in an associate RE &SP EMIRE 19 3,108 -
Deferred tax assets Lijﬂlﬁéﬁ 20 1,041 1,828
Prepayments, deposits and TERFIE - Ze &k
other receivables EWJEH&ZMIE 22 929 15,112
Total non-current assets EmBEERE 142,738 112,129
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Trade and bills receivables B o EWETE R EWER 21 22,563 22,059
Prepayments, deposits and TEFIE - Bek
other receivables o e W SR IE 22 18,581 9,308
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 23 21,300 9,000
Pledged deposits BT 24 397 812
Cash and cash equivalents BHeREEEEY 24 48,791 63,450
Total current assets mMENEEME 111,632 104,629
CURRENT LIABILITIES nREEE
Trade payables B e 5RIE 25 3,718 4,615
Advance from customers, EPEBR - HMERMRIER
other payables and accruals FEEtIE R 26 31,671 28,557
Interest-bearing bank loans and STEIRITER R EMER
an other borrowing 27 6,061 -
Tax payable FE AT R 1,801 226
Total current liabilities mENE BB 43,251 33,398
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERE 68,381 71,231
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERRBEE
LIABILITIES 211,119 183,360
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

SERBRREK (&)

31 December 2017

20174128318
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
A20175F R20164F
12A31H 12H31H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hiat AR¥ T ARBEFIT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREEE
Interest-bearing bank loans and FTEIRITER K
other borrowings HiE 27 11,681 10,000
Interest payable FEFIE - 1,210
Deferred tax liabilities MEETIE B E 20 1,111 500
Other payables H A A FRIE 29 -
Total non-current liabilities BB GEETE 12,821 11,710
Net assets BEFE 198,298 171,650
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of BAREEA
the parent PR
Share capital A% X 28 131 131
Reserves 1 30 195,075 171,519
195,206 171,650
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR 3,092 =
Total equity REZSHA %R 198,298 171,650
LI Xiangli LIU Yi
Z [ A 2|7
Director Director
EE EE

cmnwpnepsnad ovrsis [EEJIIR



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

SREmE R

Year ended 381 December 2017
HFE2017F12A31 HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BARRE AL
*Exchange Non-
Share *Capital ~ *Statutory  fluctuation ~ *Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserves reserve profits Total interests equity
HEE i FER
Ry EAGH e Ke@E  CRETR At Bi EaaE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETTE  ARETRT ARETR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETRT  ARETR
As at 1 January 2016 R2016%1A1R 65 18,374 8,490 758 33,156 60,838 161 60,999
Profit for the year e = - - - 33,628 33,628 - 33,628
Other comprehensive income for the year: ERE 2 EE :
Exchange differences on tranglation BERNEREY
of foreign operations EiER - - - 2,478 - 2,473 - 2,473
Total comprehensive income for the year FRN2ENEEE - - - 2473 33,628 36,101 - 36,101
Issue of shares (note 26) ki (Hz28) 66 84,200 - - - 84,356 - 84,356
Share issue expenses ROBIRYL - (9,645) - - - (9,645) - (9,645)
Disposal of a subsidiary HENBAA - - - - - - (161) (161)
Transfer from retained profits REFHmE - - 2,936 - (2,936) - - -
As at 31 December 2016 and 1 201651273318 R
January 2017 0171418 131 93,019 426 3,226 63,848 171,650 - 171,650
Profit for the year ERE - - - - 35,595 35,505 (892) 34,703
Other comprehensive loss for the year:  £REM2EES :
Exchange differences on translation BEBINERR
of foreign operations EREE - - - (1,915) - (1,915) - (1,915)
Total comprehensive income for the year A2 AUHESE - - - (1,915) 35,505 33,680 (892) 32,788
Final 2016 dividend EERA2016F
declared (note 11) RERE (HiE11) - - - - (10,000) (10,000) - (10,000)
Capital contributions from SRR
non-controlling shareholders BRfER - - - - - - 2,863 2,863
Equity-settled share option NEREERRRE
armangements (nofe 29) wHk (Hit29) - 627 - - - 627 - 627
Acquisition of a subsidiary WENBAR
(note 31) (Hi#31) - - - - - - 370 370
Equity transactions with EEARRRA
non-controlling shareholders BE%5 - (751) - - - (751) 751 -
Transfer from retained profits REF B - - 4,329 - (4,329) - - -
As at 31 December 2017 R2017412A31H 131 92,895 15,755 1,311 85,114 195,206 3,092 198,298
& As at 31 December 2017, these reserve accounts comprise * M2017F12A31H Z SR HE KR B &

the consolidated reserves of RMB195,075,000 (31 December
2016: RMB171,519,000) in the consolidated statement of financial

position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AEBRIMER

Year ended 31 December 2017
EE2017F 12531 AILFE

2017 2016
20175 20164
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
izt AR¥ET T ARETTT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHHBRSRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax PRI AE 43,137 38,058
Adjustments for: Bt NHZIBEEL AR
Share of profit of a joint venture BiEE & DERNE 18 (171) (7)
Share of profit of an associate JE {5 Bt 8 1B ZE ) P8 19 (8) -
Finance costs [EL RPN 7 690 1,559
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BB M RE
equipment I E 6 9,261 6,282
Depreciation of investment properties B ERITE 6 1,223 1,211
Amortisation of prepaid land lease AN S
payments SRIB SR 6 244 286
Amortisation of intangible assets 1A B 6 88 24
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEYE  WENMEBEHER
plant and equipment, net o) pic bt 6 33 53
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEHEEHREN K
investments 6 (242) (221)
Initial public offering related fee BRAAAZREREER - 9,567
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment E 5 WG IER
of trade receivables CRERR),RE 6 (213) 508
Impairment of construction in progress EEIERE 6 - 1,028
Equity-settled share option expense PARE 25 45 B A BE AR A 29 627 -
54,669 58,348
(Increase)/decrease in trade and Z 5 WGk TE & R U %
bills receivables (3gm),md (18) 6,922
Increase in prepayments, deposits and AR - ke REMELW
other receivables SRIEIE N (2,096) (1,967)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables B S M IE Crd ),/ #hn (897) 519
Decrease in advance from customers, RPN - M EMNFRIER
other payables and accruals JEETIE B RS (1,159) (5,495)
Cash generated from operations REELANIES 50,499 58,327
Income tax paid BEFEH (5,205) (8,068)
Net cash flows from operating activities L& EEFAER S ME F4E 45,294 50,259
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

GaeBRengRx (&)

Year ended 31 December 2017
HFE2017F12A31 HILFE

2017 2016
20175 20164
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
izt AR¥ET T ARETTT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REEFBHFRERERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, BEME  BE KK
plant and equipment (42,099) (35,406)
Payment for intangible assets | EENR - (794)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE  HEK
property, plant and equipment REEBFBRIE 263 38
Purchase of available-for-sale investments & 5 At H &% & (100,800) (63,500)
Disposal of available-for-sale investments HERHEHEKRE 88,500 80,500
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEMHEEERE
investments olEe 242 221
Purchase of interests in a joint venture BEAELENER - (1,500)
Purchase of interests in an associate BEBREPENER (3,100) -
Acquisition of a subsidiary, g npEE NG
net of cash acquired R ERRE 31 (498) -
Disposal of a subsidiary HERB AR - (161)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits BB IE0R A (3240) 415 (779)
Net cash flows used in investing activities H&ESFFARSRE (57,077) (21,381)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

GeBRenEgx (&)

Year ended 31 December 2017
HFE2017F12A31 HILFE

2017 2016
201745 20164
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR¥T R ARBTIT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHRERSRE

ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRMO B EIE - 84,356
Capital contributions from FEE AR A% 3R A A R0

non-controlling shareholders 2,863 -
New bank loans and other borrowing FTILRITE R R E ARG 32 50,370 -
Repayment of bank loans and EERITERK

other borrowing HinE 32 (42,684) (40,000)
Interest paid BFE (1,900) (609)
Dividend paid B E (10,000) -
Payment for initial public offering related fee & h"ﬁ'ﬁ?é‘%*@? 3 ENEEN - (21,918)
Repayment of deemed distribution (i) BEIZEDH () - (47,877)
Net cash flows used in financing activities F& EEFTRR S 8 %% (1,351) (26,048)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN BERESZEY (RY) @

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS pIlIDEE (13,134) 2,830
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 9N [& 3R & &) 5 £ % 58 (1,525) 2,473
Cash and cash equivalents at FHHEE &

beginning of year REFEY 63,450 58,147
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRREER

AT END OF YEAR REEEY 48,791 63,450
(i Pursuant to the reorganisation arrangements prior to the Company’s (0 REBEARARBREBHERZMEBR AR LT

listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, each of LI AIMEALZHE  ZEA - REX - 2 - =+
Xiangli, ZHANG Aiying, LIU Yi, LI Dexin, ZHANG Jiagi and Beijing = REBRRIEROBERKREBR AT
Lihong Cornerstone Investment Co., Ltd. transferred their total EEEEAEAIREE NBREARBRERA
equity interests in Beijing Huaxia Lihong Commodity Inspection Al ([t REE K] RSN ERE %E?”K
Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Huaxia Lihong”) to Huaxia Leon Inspection RENBAREE NBRRBERAR @ ¥
Limited, the subsidiary held by the Company, the consideration BA ANR®47,877,0007T ]DJ'(\2016$1 A
was RMB47,877,000 and settled in January 2016. 8 o
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 35 ¥R R M AL

31 December 2017
2017F12H31H

1.

Corporate and Group Information

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 29 July 2015. The registered office of the Company is
located at PO Box 1350, Clifton House, 75 Fort Street,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The Company’s
shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited from 12 July 2016.

The Company is an investment holding company. During the
year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the testing
and inspection of coal and coke in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”).

In the opinion of the directors, the Company was under the
control of LI Xiangli (XM #)) and ZHANG Alying (SR E ). LI
Xiangli and ZHANG Aiying are spouses.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

ARREBER

N EBRIERER AR ([ARF]])
R—FRKMN20156F7H290R RA S S
MM EREER A o A A i
S EA PO Box 1350, Clifton House,
75 Fort Street, Grand Cayman KY1-
1108, Cayman lslands ° AN &l f&n
2016F7H12BERBBMERZAA
PRAF £ o

ARBI/—RREER AR - AEE -
ARABREWEB QA (FESIARE
B E2REFEAREME (T4
B 1) R B AR R ARl Ko i o

E=ZRR ARBIHFRAMEKRE
B o FRAMERERSRE ©

el

SR

BRI E D RER
RABIMBRRFHBHOT

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/  equity attributable
registration and registered to the Company
Name* business share capital AAFEEEZFL  Principal activities
HEMEL/ CRITEE/ Direct Indirect
L R E SR HE M FEEK
China Leon Inspection Holding (BVI) Limited British Virgin Island US$1.00 100 - Investment holding
KRAMRES 1.00%7T REEKR
Huaxia Leon Inspection Limited The PRC HK$100 - 100  Investment holding
EB NBRRERAR Hong Kong 1007 REAER
i
BE
Asia Leon Inspection Holding Limited British Virgin Island US$50,000 100 - Investment holding
KRAMRES 50,000%7T REEKR
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MW RME (&)

31 December 2017

2017F12H31H
1. Corporate and Group Information 1. RAIREBEEHR (&)
(continued)

BREARER (&)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/  equity attributable
registration and registered to the Company
Name* business share capital AQFEEEZE DL Principal activities
HREY ORTLE/ Direct Indirect
Lo B EES R R B BE IEEE
Leon Overseas Pte. Ltd Singapore SGD1,000,000 - 51 Inspection and testing of
AR 1,000,000 A3 7T commodities
A ming kg
Leon Inspection & Testing India India INR500,000 - 80 Inspection and testing of
Private Limited g 500,000 commodities
Hmi KAl
Pt. Leon Testing and Consultancy Indonesia IDR3,001,500,000 - 51 Inspection and testing of
MERAR 3,001,500,000E0 /8 & commodities
iR K i
Leon Inspection Testing Services Sdn. Bhd  Malaysia MYR1,000,000 - 100  Inspection and testing of
SRAE 1,000,0005% commodities
Hmi Rl
Beijing Huaxia Lihong The PRC RMB50,000,000 - 100  Coal inspection
TRERNBERRRERAF Mainland China AR#50,000,0007C Y&
H
HE A
Qinhuangdao Lihong Coal Testing Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100  Coal and coke testing,
REENERRRAERAA Mainland China AK#1,000,0007C inspection and relevant
H service
HE R Bx RERRA - BB R
R
Tangshan Huaxia Lihong Commodity The PRC RMB1,000,000 = 100  Inspection, testing,
Inspection Co., Ltd. Mainland China AK#1,000,0007T appraisal and inspection
EILEE hEERRBERAR s technology development
hEIRH & Al SRR
RERER R
Tianjin Huaxia Lihong Coal Testing Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB1,000,000 = 100  Coal and coke inspection
REZENBRRRAIBRAT Mainland China AR#1,000,0007 RRRERRR
i
HE A
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRmE (&)

31 December 2017
2017F12H31H

1. Corporate and Group Information

1.

RFRAREEER (F)

(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) BARKEARER (&)
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/  equity attributable
registration and registered to the Company
Name* business share capital AAFEEEZFL  Principal activities
ML/ CRITEE/ Direct Indirect
B SR E R HE M FEEK
Nanjing Lihong Coal Testing Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB3,000,000 - 100  Coal, coke and minerals
AR ERRRAERA ] Mainland China ARH3,000,0007C inspection
HE B ERREDRR
H B sty
Guangzhou Lihong Coal Testing Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC RMB1,440,000 - 100  Professional technique
BINABRERBABRAT Mainland China ARH1,440,0007 service
i EER IR
HE A
Hebei Lihong Minerals Inspection Co., Ltd.  The PRC RMB3,000,000 - 100  Coal inspection technique
N ERERRBRERA R Mainland China ARH3,000,0007 advisory service
i BB R AR
H 93t
Hunan Lihong Coal Testing Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB3,000,000 - 100  Coal, coke and minerals
T EEREAERAT Mainland China AE%3,000,0007 testing and inspection
t Bx - ERREY
R A 1Rl ks
Zhuhai Lidaohongtu Coal Testing The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100  Coal and minerals testing,
Technology Services Co., Ltd. Mainland China AK1,000,0007C inspection and advisory
KB HERERIRARMREERAR & service
Rl RRRBEORA - BB R
A AR
Beijing Huaxia Lihong Software The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100  Software development,
Development Co., Ltd. Mainland China AK1,000,0007C technique service and
IREENERHREERAA i sale of computers and
Al At equipment
BUEFR - RITREIU R
Bl RREHE
Tianjin Shengde Tiangong Sampling The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100  Scientific research,
Technology Co., Ltd. Mainland China AR#10,000,0007C technique service and
REREERTHERITERAF i business service
Rl U~ Bl AR el 5 PR
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MW RME (&)

31 December 2017

2017F12H31H
1. Corporate and Group Information 1. RAIREBEEHR (&)
(continued)

BREARER (&)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/  equity attributable
registration and registered to the Company
Name* business share capital AQFEEEZE DL Principal activities
TR/ B%{7&%E/  Direct Indirect
Lo B EES R B BE IEEE
Shaanxi Huaxia Lihong Commodity The PRC RMB50,000,000 - 55 Quality Inspection Service
Inspection Co., Ltd. Mainland China AR #50,000,0007C EERBREG
REZEENEARRBERAA HE
HE A
Huoerguosi Huaxialihong Quality The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100  Product quality
Technical Service Co., Ltd. Mainland China AK#1,000,0007 control,inspection,
ERRMZEENRESRMBRBERAR  FH evaluation supervision,
F 3t testing and relevant
technique service
EmZEEN - k-
AHEEE - AN
m%&m%
Leon Sanitary Inspection Technical The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100  Vector biological control
Service (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. Mainland China AR#1,000,0007C technology, technological
NEERERRS (KE) BR HE development and
HE A consulting and chemical
products wholesale and
retail
B E ORI - B
FEHH (L EEM
BERTE
* The English names of the companies registered in the * AR EFBFMe AR RFMEX

PRC represent the best efforts of the management of the

Company in directly translating the Chinese names of the

companies as no English names have been registered.

All these companies were incorporated with limited liability.

B MMBARNRIEERAR
AEEEERBERRTXAE °

PIBZERARIHEMKLASBERA
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRmE (&)

31 December 2017
2017F12H31H

21 FEREE

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (which include all International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards
(“IASs”) and interpretations) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for available-for-sale investments, which has been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2017. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MW RME (&)

31 December 2017
2017F12H31H

2.1

Basis of Preparation (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.1 wmAREE ()

REEE (&)

BME SRR RERBRRFER -
BaE Rk EM 2R RS AKE D ER
BT ARKER]RRZHER A RIFEBE
@ FTAEABASBKE RARRERZH
SENEEERE  #m - Wa - FX
kB REECNERE AR TEMHE -

fHEERBERRA Lz s N =ER
ZPN—EAXRZELREHE  KE
BeEMTEHREHRERERER
B o RREZDIRERE QR A ERE
HEPHEANRRERRS

fied 75 52 1 5 25 S B B8 % B e #2260 B
HEFERONZMNBRARANEE (21
HE) REE (EAFEERERORK
H{E : R(i)st AR RIEREZ5
I #E )2 W B R A EBE ()R
BEMRENAAEBE - Rii)EmES
TR EENRRLEE - WAKE
EEENEHBEENRG TR
it 22 T Wi i R R AR ) AN S B A £ ALK BB
DIWMBRUEREEEN D EEBENL
REAME (EA) -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRmE (&)

31 December 2017
2017F12H31H

2.2 SR BENEHRINE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and

Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 7
CEIR g 2E8I) 7R 2 185]
Amendments to IAS 12

(BBt 2ER]) F1258 2 &5]
Amendments to IFRS 12 included in Annual
Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
(BB 5 5 2RI E125% 2 15T
B A2014-2016 8.2 F[Z 254

None of the above amendments to IFRSs has had a
significant financial effect on these financial statements.
Disclosure has been made in note 32 to the financial
statements upon the adoption of amendments to IAS
7, which require an entity to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes
in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.
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Disclosure Initiative

wETE

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised
Losses

B AR IR R RRE

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities:
Clarification of the Scope of IFRS 12

BERAEMERZ B - BF (BRI

IR ) E 1295 B EXLE Z EIE

Et (BB SR E LR ST B &
iTDA—rﬁﬁfk#&%?iiﬁﬁﬁﬁ?/s £
HACEBE 228 F79REETRE - B
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International Financial Reporting
Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

i T

AEBRMBHREAFERERATEE
o8 1 R A RO ¥ 7] M AR RT CBIBR BE

these financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 2

CEIBRBA TS RS 2ERI)) 5529k 2 (85
Amendments to IFRS 4

(BRI 75 s R F4RZEFT

IFRS 9

(BB B B 5 2ERI) 5955
Amendments to IFRS 9

(BB B F5 3R 5 22 A1) EE95% 2 15T
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

CEIRR B 5 5 22 A ) 285105k &
(IR R 2R ) 5285k 2 185]

IFRS 15

RS B 75 3 5 2 B ) 28 1555%

Amendments to IFRS 15

CEIRR B s i 5 2 Bl ) 51558 2 (BT
IFRS 16

(B T ¥R 5 2R Rl ) £ 165%
Amendments to IAS 40

CEIBR &t 2ER1) 4055 2 1BR]

BELER) o

Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions’

KR BER I Z 8903 R i &

Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts’

£ (BB 75 3 27 2B Rl ) 4R B & 49— 0F
JE B (BB AT TR & ER| ) E99 & T A'

Financial Instruments’

ERTA

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation?

TEREAIFER B #7157

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture*

REZHABED RS E P E A
BEHEHKA

Revenue from Contracts with Customers’

- yS=y ol ¢

Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers'’

BE (BRI EER) E 1555 EF &AMz
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2.3 Issued but not yet Effective 2.3 CEMENMKEMDN (B
International Financial Reporting B iR &E 2R (88)
Standards (continued)
IFRIC-22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration’
B sHRE2REEE S — REF225% SMNE RS 5 R BT B
IFRIC-23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?
BRI R ERELZE S — REE235% T 15 5 1 2 1 T e T 142
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?®
(BB B R 5 2ERI) 1755 Rz & #°
Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement’
CEIBR & ET 2281 ) B195% 2 185F] FTEIRIER - AR S AEE
Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle Amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28!
FEH#E2014-2016F HH] (EIRR B SRS AR BI D) 551557 R K BIBR & 5128
55285k 2 {EAT
Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12
and IAS 232
FEH#E2015-2017 FHH] (BB 5 5 2RI 355 - (BRI S 3RE

R F115% - KBRS R E125% 1%
(BB & T #R)) F235 2 EF]2

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 1 R2018F1 A1H K 2 AR MFE
2018 BRI AR

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 R2019F1 A1k 2 e IR FE
2019 BRI AR

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 3 R2021F1 A1k 2 e IR FE
2021 HA ) AR 2

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available 2 W R E R G A B - (BRTEEA

for adoption
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2.3 lIssued but not yet Effective

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below.

The IASB issued amendments to IFRS 2 in June 2016
that address three main areas: the effects of vesting
conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled share-
based payment transaction; the classification of a share-
based payment transaction with net settlement features
for withholding a certain amount in order to meet an
employee’s tax obligation associated with the share-based
payment; and accounting where a modification to the terms
and conditions of a share-based payment transaction
changes its classification from cash-settled to equity-
settled. The amendments clarify that the approach used
to account for vesting conditions when measuring equity-
settled share-based payments also applies to cash-settled
share-based payments. The amendments introduce an
exception so that a share-based payment transaction with
net share settlement features for withholding a certain
amount in order to meet the employee’s tax obligation is
classified in its entirety as an equity-settled share-based
payment transaction when certain conditions are met.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that if the terms
and conditions of a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction are modified, with the result that it becomes
an equity-settled share-based payment transaction, the
transaction is accounted for as an equity-settled transaction
from the date of the modification. On adoption, entities are
required to apply the amendments without restating prior
periods, but retrospective application is permitted if they
elect to adopt for all three amendments and other criteria
are met. The Group will adopt the amendments from 1
January 2018. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 lIssued but not yet Effective

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9,
bringing together all phases of the financial instruments
project to replace IAS 39 and all previous versions of
IFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement, impairment and hedge
accounting. The Group will adopt IFRS 9 from 1 January
2018. The Group will not restate comparative information
and will recognise any transition adjustments against the
opening balance of equity at 1 January 2018. During 2017,
the Group has performed a detailed assessment of the
impact of the adoption of IFRS 9. The expected impacts
relate to the classification and measurement and the
impairment requirements and are summarised as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement

The Group does not expect that the adoption of IFRS
9 will have a significant impact on the classification
and measurement of its financial assets. It expects
to continue measuring at fair value all bank financial
products currently held at fair value. Gains and
losses of those bank financial products will be
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.3 lIssued but not yet Effective

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

(b) Impairment

IFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments
recorded at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, lease receivables, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts that
are not accounted for at fair value through profit
or loss under IFRS 9, to be recorded based on an
expected credit loss model either on a twelve-month
basis or a lifetime basis. The Group will apply the
simplified approach and record lifetime expected
losses that are estimated based on the present
values of all cash shortfalls over the remaining life of
all of its trade receivables. Furthermore, the Group
will apply the general approach and record twelve-
month expected credit losses that are estimated
based on the possible default events on its other
receivables within the next twelve months.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and
in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The
amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business.
For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
The previous mandatory effective date of amendments to
IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed by the IASB in December
2015 and a new mandatory effective date will be determined
after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments
are available for adoption now.
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International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

IFRS 15, issued in May 2014, establishes a new five-
step model to account for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. The principles in IFRS
15 provide a more structured approach for measuring and
recognising revenue. The standard also introduces extensive
qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue, information
about performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede
all current revenue recognition requirements under
IFRSs. Either a full retrospective application or a modified
retrospective adoption is required on the initial application of
the standard. In April 2016, the IASB issued amendments to
IFRS 15 to address the implementation issues on identifying
performance obligations, application guidance on principal
versus agent and licences of intellectual property, and
transition. The amendments are also intended to help
ensure a more consistent application when entities adopt
IFRS 15 and decrease the cost and complexity of applying
the standard. The Group plans to adopt the transitional
provisions in IFRS 15 to recognise the cumulative effect of
initial adoption as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings at 1 January 2018. In addition, the Group
plans to apply the new requirements only to contracts
that are not completed before 1 January 2018. The Group
expects that the transitional adjustment to be made on
1 January 2018 upon initial adoption of IFRS 15 will not
be material. The Group also assessed that the expected
changes in accounting policies, as further explained below,
will not have a material impact on the Group’s financial
statements from 2018 onwards. During 2017, the Group
has performed a detailed assessment on the impact of the
adoption of IFRS 15.
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International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

The Group derived a majority of its revenue from testing
services during 2017. The Group performs analytical tests
for coal quality and usually issues testing certificates or
reports within 24 to 48 hours after completion of the on-site
preparation. Upon the adoption of IFRS 15, revenue from
the testing services will be recognised at a point in time
when test result is delivered to the customer, which is the
same as the current practice. The Group has determined
that when IFRS 15 is adopted, the Group’s revenue for
2017 will not be changed significantly. The expected
impacts arising from the adoption of IFRS 15 on the Group
is the presentation and disclosure of financial statements.

The presentation and disclosure requirements in IFRS 15
are more detailed than those under the current IAS 18. The
presentation requirements represent a significant change
from current practice and will significantly increase the
volume of disclosures required in the Group’s financial
statements. Many of the disclosure requirements in IFRS
15 are new and the Group has assessed that the impact of
some of these disclosure requirements will be significant. In
particular, the Group expects that the notes to the financial
statements will be expanded because of the disclosure of
significant judgements made on determining the transaction
prices of those contracts that include variable consideration,
how the transaction prices have been allocated to the
performance obligations, and the assumptions made to
estimate the stand-alone selling price of each performance
obligation. In addition, as required by IFRS 15, the Group
will disaggregate revenue recognised from contracts with
customers into categories that depict how the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
are affected by economic factors. It will also disclose
information about the relationship between the disclosure of
disaggregated revenue and revenue information disclosed
for each reportable segment.
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International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

IFRS 16, issued in January 2016, replaces IAS 17 Leases,
IFRIC-4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases — Incentives and SIC-
27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving
the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise
assets and liabilities for most leases. The standard includes
two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-
value assets and short-term leases. At the commencement
date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make
lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset during
the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use
asset is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses unless the right-of-
use asset meets the definition of investment property in IAS
40, or relates to a class of property, plant and equipment to
which the revaluation model is applied. The lease liability is
subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the lease
liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will
be required to separately recognise the interest expense on
the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-
of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure
the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events,
such as change in the lease term and change in future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine those payments. Lessees will generally
recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease
liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor
accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from
the accounting under IAS 17. Lessors will continue to
classify all leases using the same classification principle
as in IAS 17 and distinguish between operating leases
and finance leases. IFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors
to make more extensive disclosures than under IAS 17.
Lessees can choose to apply the standard using either a
full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The
Group expects to adopt IFRS 16 from 1 January 2019. The
Group is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 16 upon
adoption and is considering whether it will choose to take
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International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

advantage of the practical expedients available and which
transition approach and reliefs will be adopted. As disclosed
in note 34(b) to the financial statements, at 31 December
2017, the Group had future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in aggregate of
approximately RMB20,649,000. Upon adoption of IFRS
16, certain amounts included therein may need to be
recognised as new right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.
Further analysis, however, will be needed to determine the
amount of new rights of use assets and lease liabilities to
be recognised, including, but not limited to, any amounts
relating to leases of low-value assets and short term leases,
other practical expedients and reliefs chosen, and new
leases entered into before the date of adoption.

Amendments to IAS 40, issued in December 2016,
clarify when an entity should transfer property, including
property under construction or development, into or out of
investment property. The amendments state that a change
in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet,
the definition of investment property and there is evidence
of the change in use. A mere change in management’s
intentions for the use of a property does not provide
evidence of a change in use. The amendments should be
applied prospectively to the changes in use that occur on or
after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which
the entity first applies the amendments. An entity should
reassess the classification of property held at the date that
it first applies the amendments and, if applicable, reclassify
property to reflect the conditions that exist at that date.
Retrospective application is only permitted if it is possible
without the use of hindsight. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2018. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

IFRIC-22, issued in December 2016, provides guidance
on how to determine the date of the transaction when
applying IAS 21 to the situation where an entity receives
or pays advance consideration in a foreign currency
and recognises a non-monetary asset or liability. The
interpretation clarifies that the date of the transaction for
the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on
initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or
part of it) is the date on which an entity initially recognises
the non-monetary asset (such as a prepayment) or non-
monetary liability (such as deferred income) arising from the
payment or receipt of the advance consideration. If there are
multiple payments or receipts in advance of recognising the
related item, the entity must determine the transaction date
for each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.
Entities may apply the interpretation on a full retrospective
basis or on a prospective basis, either from the beginning
of the reporting period in which the entity first applies
the interpretation or the beginning of the prior reporting
period presented as comparative information in the financial
statements of the reporting period in which the entity first
applies the interpretation. The Group expects to adopt
the interpretation prospectively from 1 January 2018. The
interpretation is not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.
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International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

IFRIC-23, issued in June 2017, addresses the accounting
for income taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments
involve uncertainty that affects the application of IAS
12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax positions”). The
interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies outside the
scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements
relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain
tax treatments. The interpretation specifically addresses
(i) whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments
separately; (ii) the assumptions an entity makes about the
examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities; (iii)
how an entity determines taxable profits or tax losses,
tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax
rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes in facts
and circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied
retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the use
of hindsight or retrospectively with the cumulative effect
of application as an adjustment to the opening equity at
the date of initial application, without the restatement of
comparative information. The Group expects to adopt the
interpretation from 1 January 2019. The interpretation is
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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2.4 EXEFTHEME

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies
Investments in associates and joint ventures BEPERSELERE
An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term B PEERER TS — K TENR20%

BREREENRPESNER  TAX
SEHUZEREREARTEN - BEAY
EHE2EBRRE M HENRERE E’J

interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in

the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, TS - (B IEY IS LR SR A 5 4| RE B
but is not control or joint control over those policies. [R) $2m ) 42 o

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby &8 EAE—TBHRZH Bt - BH
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement TR RS EN S T EEZ A%
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint EEPENEETE LREHIREE
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an RE XX E ‘T%IEQT?F@? LB RS

arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the HEE4(EEERBESERLER=ZA

relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the EHENSSEE —BRAEZRERT
parties sharing control. o
The Group’s investments in an associate and a joint venture REBRHBELEREELEMNIKETY

RIEERGDERANEE G EEFE

are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position

at the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method
of accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments are
made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies
that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of the associate and the joint
venture is included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its
share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s investment in the associate or joint venture,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from
the associate or joint venture is included as part of the
Group’s investment in the associate or joint venture.
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2.4 EXRSFHBERBE (&)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For
each business combination, the Group elects whether to
measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that
are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.
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2.4 EXRSTEEBE (&)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment
test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of
cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units
or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value
of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.
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2.4 EXRSFHBERBE (&)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its available-for-sale investments at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.
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20174124314
2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting 24 EASTHEREE ()

Policies (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued) AREETE (&)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured FIEERARBENRME %&%ﬁrg&?&?@

or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised MEERBEDNETLAARBESEHRS

within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based B oEIDERHEAREBE d‘i%ﬁ‘f
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value EEREANKEER AZRE
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets F1R - ERNEREEXEBERERMS
for identical assets or liabilities HFRE (REAE)

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the Fo —ERNE AR BEFEMSBEKR
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value NABR (B EE) REEH
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly ABBENHESE

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the E3R —ERH AR EBEFEMSBERXN
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value B9 A] B SR e M ) A BUR A
measurement is unobservable BER%E

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial EUBmREGEIANEEREE K

statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines EEABNSMEB KRBT E D

whether transfers have occurred between levels in the (ERE AR BEFEEEMEBEAX

hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest WxEE@ASE) BEEEEETH

level input that is significant to the fair value measurement ERER o

as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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2.4 EXRSFHBERBE (&)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(if) has significant influence over the Group; or

(ifi) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;
(if) one entity is an associate or joint venture of

the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;
and the sponsoring employers of the post-
employment benefit plan;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

2.4 EXRSFHBERBE (&)

BAmBS (&)
(iv)

(viii)
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2.4 EXRSTEEBE (&)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Land and buildings 4.75%
Vehicles 23.75%
Electronic equipment and others 19% to 31.67%
Leasehold improvements 20% to 33.33%
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting 2.4 ERETTHRBE (&)
Policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation ME - BERRBURINE (&)
(continued)
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment B WERZEEEN TR E
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated BEa TR ZEEKAR RIS ME
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is BESIK  BMEHoHEBITE - Tk
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and BE- - FHE &?ﬁ%ﬁ/j&i} A=A E
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if VHREEHEBETEERAR (WE
appropriate, at least at each financial year end. ) o
An item of property, plant and equipment including any M BELREEE (BREVLER
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon WAERERE D) R ERTBHFER
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected jiﬁ ENGEE R IRAEF 2 R 4% 11
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or R RNRIEREENFELERKE
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in RERLENREER  REBREE
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between HSHE MBS IR FEAREENERE o

the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under FRIRETENET - BRAREM
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment BEBEIRETMERE - KABERE
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct RN EEER ﬁXﬁ&*H FEAES
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on MEREBREAN - BEEETLIZTTKIL
related borrowed funds during the period of construction. AERAK BRHEFTIBEZEEWE
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate W= KRR o

category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.
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2.4 EXRSTEEBE (&)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease
for a property which would otherwise meet the definition
of an investment property) held to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course
of business. Such properties are measured initially at
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of
investment properties using the straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives years. Owner-occupied property
is transferred to investment property when there is a change
in use evidenced by the end of owner occupation.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in
which the item is derecognised.
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2.4 EXRSFHBERBE (&)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at each financial year end.

Patents and licences

Purchased patents and licences are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line
basis over the shorter of their estimated useful lives and the
relevant licence periods.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or
loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale,
its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the
asset, how the asset will generate future economic benefits,
the availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.
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2.4 EXRSTEEBE (&)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases net of any incentives received from the
lessor are charged to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms of 25 years to 40
years.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments and available-for-
sale financial investments, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except
in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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2.4 EXRSFHBERBE (&)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in other
income and gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss
arising from impairment is recognised in finance costs for
loans and in other expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments.
Equity investments classified as available for sale are
those which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to
be held for an indefinite period of time and which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to
changes in market conditions.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting 24 EASTHERBE (&)
Policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued) RERHMERMEE (&)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued) HRAEL@KRE (&)
After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial Ry ERE - AIEEE SRR ERER
investments are subsequently measured at fair value, BAREBHEFE  AERBRNZIRE
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other BIFERAITNAHESREBEREN
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale investment BRAEHMEEWE @ RIEEREHE
revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised, EZREETARBERZTERIIRE
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised mEANERASEMBA - ERF R E=E
in the statement of profit or loss in other income, or until TRt EREMEREENTS2ESR
the investment is determined to be impaired, when the BRAPHEMBZE - NEAAHLES
cumulative gains or loss is reclassified from the available- T RiI% & R AT RRENA T B R AR B 5 7
for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement HIEF B A KR EWA 28 - WARE
of profit or loss in other gains or losses. Interest and TX WARER] TEM AT REEER
dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale R AEMIA o

financial investments are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss as other income in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot WARE@QBFTEEANBECEZRES
be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range HERZITE TS BEANSK(O)EHFTAA
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that BERRESEIHLINAEEASEAR
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates RS (hETEE AR AT REME » MR EEA] SEHD
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used TEFLITERREREZAREE " Al
in estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost B ERKABEREBEARK -

less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell rEEeFHEEEHALENHEES
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are BMEEMENEERNEENBEE - £
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group FERBLT EEMSTNERMEE
is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive ZEERLIEERSeREER BT
markets, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial BEAwNBEEERARABEREFAE
assets if management has the ability and intention to hold REBESIFERZSEEZIHNGBNR
the assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity. T AEEAEESHHOEZESHE
E o
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2.4 EXRSFHBERBE (&)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale
category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining
life of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity
amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset
using the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in
equity is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
° the Group has transferred its rights to receive

cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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2.4 EXRSTEEBE (&)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.
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2.4 EXRSFHBERBE (&)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively
for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss
is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred).
The present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues
to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is
later recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses
in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 EXRSTEEBE (&)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a group
of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost
of the investment and “prolonged” against the period in
which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognised in the statement of profit
or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment
losses on equity instruments classified as available for sale
are not reversed through the statement of profit or loss.
Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.
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2.4 EXRSFHBERBE (&)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables and interest-bearing bank loans and other
borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 EXRSTEEBE (&)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

m China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2017

RIEBIASHMEAE

cERBERABE TR - BUEsEm
B4R IERERR o

HWEEEBRBEHR—MEARBERK
REREEANZ—SBMABEENR 3R
BREBENHEREEERER  MEBE
RBEFT AR LR RA BB
RIMBE MEKAEIEZHERNER
RHER ©

RERRSEEY

PEEERERERMS  REKREFH
EBYERETHERAS EHEFNR - ARA
ERERSENMBERE OREEAE
BEEHRER) YNBAKR-—RE=EA
RNEHHEASERBIRE (HKREAR
EREELBRAEERSEETEN
Al SRR AV ERITIE IR ) ©

REAMBRREME REMAEF
EYERYERGIMBENFHERLRTER
T (BEREHERRERSEERED
BE)

Fri&8t

PRSI B IR AN ER MO AE R IE - BN
SMNERRH) IR B ARRR R PTG TN B &R SN EY
Hip 2 mE e sk B RN R R -

BIHAMIR B E R B ER AR 8 R S#H
R ER N THERENESE - RIE
RBEHREERKER EEHAHR X
(RBOE) Lt RARBELMEBRR
ERNRELENE -



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MW RME (&)

31 December 2017
2017F12H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2017
2017F12H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which
it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can
be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) service income, from the rendering of coal and coke
testing and inspection services, when the agreed
services are provided;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms;

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset; and

(d) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.
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2.4 EXRSTEEBE (&)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model, further details of which are
given in note 29 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at
the end of each reporting period until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to
the statement of profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.
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2.4 EXRSFHBERBE (&)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments,
or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at
the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions
within the control of either the Group or the employee are
not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award
on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards
are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.
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2.4 EXRSTEEBE (&)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Employee benefits
Social pension plans

The Group has social pension plans for its employees
arranged by local government labour and security
authorities. The Group makes contributions on a monthly
basis to the social pension plans. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the social pension plans. Under
the plans, the Group has no further obligations beyond the
contributions made.

Housing fund and other social insurances

The Group has participated in defined social security
contribution schemes for its employees pursuant to the
relevant laws and regulations of the PRC. These include
housing fund, basic medical insurance, unemployment
insurance, injury insurance and maternity insurance. The
Group makes monthly contributions to the housing fund and
other social insurances. The contributions are charged to
profit or loss on an accrual basis. The Group has no further
obligations beyond the contributions made.

Apart from those described above, the Group does not have
any other legal or constructive obligations over employee
benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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2.4 EXRSFHBERBE (&)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority to
declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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2.4 EXRSTEEBE (&)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit
or loss are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements 3. ERSFHE KA
and Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements BEANREFENTBHRRERKEEEELY
requires management to make judgements, estimates and HIE - e REBE mMeex ZU0 A -
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, YTH - BELREBEERESENLEEN T
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying BREBENIEE - ZE®E NG
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. M EEEE eS| AR BER T
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could MNEENBENEREELE N o

result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements |

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, RERAEERN@TKREBIRED - B
management has made the following judgements, apart RAsTayHEroN - BB EEL A THE
from those involving estimations, which have the most BEHmRPOEREEEEATLENH
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial i

statements:

Operating lease commitments - Group as lessor BEHERIE — FEFERZLEHEA
The Group has entered into commercial property leases on REBOREKEYMELRESIISIEED
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, R E o BN Y ZHE R K T
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the e REEEET  NEZRELETA
arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and EHEYE T EENE I E AR &
rewards of ownership of these properties which are leased o] = o

out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and BREYEREFYEN S E
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an NEFBEBEF—EYMERLESEBIEAE
investment property, and has developed criteria in making BYE  WWHITE/EL ARG H ET R IELE o
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to WEYEBFZERINA S IELEANEE
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. SHIER A AR o

HELEREBEREIRAT 2017 ERE



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRmE (&)

31 December 2017
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3.

Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below:

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from
the cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. The
amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2017
was RMB6,305,000 (2016: RMB1,599,000). Further details
are contained in note 20 to the financial statements.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group maintains an allowance for estimated loss
arising from the inability of its customers to make the
required payments. The Group makes its estimates based
on the ageing of its trade receivable balances, customers’
creditworthiness, and historical write-off experience. If the
financial condition of its customers will deteriorate such that
the actual impairment loss might be higher than expected,
the Group would be required to revise the basis for making
the allowance and its future results would be affected.
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2017F12H31H

3.

Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested
for impairment annually and at other times when such an
indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in
an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows.

Useful lives and residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment and investment properties

In determining the useful lives and residual values of
items of property, plant and equipment and investment
properties, the Group periodically reviews the changes in
market conditions, the expected physical wear and tear,
and the maintenance of the asset. The estimation of the
useful life of the asset is based on historical experience
of the Group with similar assets that are used in a similar
way. Depreciation amounts will be adjusted if the estimated
useful lives and/or the residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment and investment properties are different
from previous estimation. Useful lives and residual values
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period based on
changes in circumstances.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2017

2017%128318
3. Significant Accounting Judgements 3. EXSTHHERMAF (&)
and Estimates (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued) T RERE (&)
Share option scheme BREE
The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions AEBE2RER T ERELBHENAR
with employees by reference to the fair value of the equity BEFAEEHESETEREERIZINK
instruments at the date at which they are granted. Estimating Kot A BEFEREREART
fair value requires determining the most appropriate B TAMNMGHERE  SBUARKETH
valuation model for a grant of equity instruments, which is ARG - SthERBEEGHBEREAD
dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This e ENEABE  BEERSS K
also requires determining the most appropriate inputs to BEMREBRZEUARIRFELER
the valuation model including the expected life, volatility HoEHGBHZAMNEBERSAE - 5
and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. SR BERNNRNEFTKATE
Continuous estimation is required for the calculation of HEME &%%TH%%EE%E’J%Z%T’EE
cumulative share-based payment cost at each reporting fhat o ARRID BEBA N REFBEHR
date until vesting, including estimate of the number that will T MIFE29 o
vest. Details of share-based payments are contained in note
29 to the financial statements.
4. Operating Segment Information 4., REFHER
The Group’s revenue and contribution to consolidated HARAEBIRARGEEERAETER
results are mainly derived from coal testing and related Eﬁ%mhxﬁ'ﬁﬁi*ﬁ R MRTY - EER
technical services, which is regarded as a single reportable —HERRS S AERRFNERE
segment in a manner consistent with the way in which ﬁtﬁF&ﬁ BAFRAEBESREEA
information is reported internally to the Group’s senior BETANEREAERN TR —5
management for purposes of resource arrangement W RZNE EERBEZIEAD
and performance assessment. Accordingly, no segment EER -
information by profit, asset and liability is presented.
Geographical information i 35 & B}
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) RKREINEBEFBKA
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREBTT
Mainland China Fh R A 3 194,873 186,466
Other countries/regions HER & 6,048 =
200,921 186,466

The revenue information above is based on the
locations of the customers.
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31 December 2017

20174125318
4. Operating Segment Information 4., REFTER (F)
(continued)
Geographical information (continued) g ER (&)
(b)  Non-current assets (b) FREEE
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
M20175 20164
12831H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBFIT
Mainland China R 139,715 110,301
Other countries/regions HER & 1,982 =
141,697 110,301
The non-current asset information above is based EXFEERBEEERIER
on the locations of the assets and excludes financial BEMTH I TEESMITA
instruments and deferred tax assets. MBEERIBEE ©
Information about a major customer —BEXEEFNER
During the year ended 31 December 2017, revenue HZE2017F12A31HLEFEE - A&
generated from one of the Group’s customers accounting BHEF -—HZXPABKRAMGAREERIK
for 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue was AM10%3 A £ - B ARET3,834,000
RMB73,834,000 (year ended 31 December 2016: 7T (B E2016F12A31HIEFE : AR
RMB99,520,000). #99,520,0007T) °
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5. Revenue, Other Income and Gains 5.

Revenue comprises the value of services rendered.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gains

WA~ WA R WS

WA BIEAIRERENER -

HARSEBA - A A R Kz H D47

is as follows: HywT -
2017 2016
20175 20164
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hiat ARETT ARBFIT
Revenue WA
Testing services 0Bl AR 7% 164,213 151,308
Surveying services 25 7 R 7% 28,500 25,832
Witnessing and ancillary services B35 N B AR 7S 8,208 9,326
200,921 186,466
Other income Hi g A
Bank interest income IRITHBUA 54 29
Government grants BT 4 B 108 528
Rental income el A 581 591
743 1,148
Gains &
Gain on disposal of HEHEERE
available-for-sale investments olless 242 221
Gain on acquisition of a subsidiary  UgEE[TE A R kS 31 85 -
Others Eii 564 44
891 265
1,634 1,413
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31 December 2017
2017F12H31H

6.

Profit before Tax

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

6. BiAIFE

AEBEWBATFBEEIRR (GEA) AT

(crediting): SIE/H :
2017 2016
20175 20164
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt AR®BTR ARETT
Cost of services provided FTH@ £t AR 75 r A 2R 90,237 90,107
Depreciation of property, ME - R RREOITE

plant and equipment 13 9,261 6,282
Depreciation of investment properties &EWERITE 14 1,223 1,211
Amortisation of prepaid land TR £ 1 AH & SR §E

lease payments 15 244 286
Amortisation of intangible assets ER G EH 17 88 24
Research and development costs: BB

Current year expenditure KEERL 14,051 4,318
Minimum lease payments under KERERTRERAS

operating leases:

Land and buildings T RIEF 6,835 6,333
Auditor’s remuneration % BH D 5 A 1,200 1,916
Employee benefit expenses REEANRY (BREESFR

(including directors’ and the chief R THRABHH) :

executive’s remuneration):

Wages and salaries IERF® 53,172 47,629

Pension scheme contributions RIRE FTEIE 3K 4,948 4,759

Welfare and other expenses & R E AR 2 11,560 8,981

Equity-settled share option expense — LA#Ezs 45 5 60 B AR HE R 2 29 627 =

70,307 61,369

Impairment of trade receivables B 5 EWRIERE 21 172 650
Reversal of impairment of trade B 5 W SR IBR B B [

receivables 21 (385) (142)

(213) 508

Impairment of construction in progress 7 i TIZR{E 13 - 1,028

Bank interest income RITF WA (54) (29)

Loss on disposal of items of property, LEYE  BEK

plant and equipment, net REEE SR FE 33 53
Gain on disposal of oS AT it S IR B B ke

available-for-sale investments (242) (221)
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7. Finance Costs 7.

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

BE KA
HRMERKANDFHIIT -

2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Interest on bank loans and other borrowings  #R17 &3k & H fib & 55 & 690 1,559
. . . = /= =
8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 8. EEREBSITHAEEMH

Remuneration

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a),
(b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

RIFECETRRD - BECRFUEDD £
383(1)(a) ~ (b) ~ (c) R(MERA K A TF] (3K
BESNGDER) RO F2BWEZF
NEZRRSTTRASFHMIAT

2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Fees e 252 267
Other emoluments: Hi s -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RERIERESF = 2,217 2,301

Performance related bonuses BFRRATEAL 720 _

Pension scheme contributions RIS SRR 153 141

3,090 2,442

3,342 2,709

During the year, no directors were granted share options
(2016: Nil).
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2017F12H31H

8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Remuneration (continued)

(a)

Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
during the year were as follows:

8. %ﬁ&%%ﬁﬁké%ﬁﬁﬁ

(@) BIUFFTES
FARBILIFRTEE TR

ST -
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

YANG Rongbing (L E=S 84 89
ZHAO Hong AT 84 89
WANG Zichen FEEE 84 89
252 267

FAVEERABLIIERNTESE

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2016: Nil).

MEEMEE (20165 « &) o
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8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 8. EERBRSITHAEHMH
Remuneration (continued) (£8)
(b) Executive directors, a non-executive (b) HITEE- IHITEERES
director and the chief executive THAE
2017 201745
Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
g
= 42954 &N BifkE
ok FHREFR HEEA IR E Fokd
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FR AR¥T R AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR
Executive directors HITES
LI Xiangli FRF
(Chief executive) (ZBTHAE) - 865 200 51 1,116
LIU Yi 25 - 748 220 51 1,019
ZHANG Alying RER - 604 300 51 955
- 2,217 720 153 3,090
Non-executive director F#HTES
WANG Gang T4 - - - - -
- 2,217 720 153 3,090
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20174 12431H
8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 8. EERBRSITHAEHMH
Remuneration (continued) (&)
(b) Executive directors, a non-executive (b) HITEE- kHITEERES
director and the chief executive (continued) THAE (&)
2016 20164
Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration
e
2R K & Rike
ik FRE &= HEETEA HEGSS e

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTR  ARETT ARBTT ARETR

Executive directors BTES

LI Xiangli FRF
(Chief executive) (RETHAE) = 1,103 = 47 1,150

LIUYi 20y - 659 - 47 706

ZHANG Alying RE K = 539 - 47 586
- 2,301 - 141 2,442

Non-executive director F#HTES

WANG Gang T4 = - - - -
- 2,301 - 141 2,442

There was no arrangement under which a director FR WEAFNESKZEITH

or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any A B B E 5k [F] B pREE 1 {n] S B AY

remuneration during the year. ZHE ©
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9.

Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included
three directors of the Company (2016: three), details of
whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of
the remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2016:
two) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor
chief executive of the Company are as follows:

hEmEHNES

FRNAERSFTMHEREBREARA=S
E% (20165 : =%) ' AEKEH M
HFFIEE SN EXFES - JEARAE
ENFRSTHRABNRTMERSH
BiE 8 (20164 : M%) B F AFBMF
ICE 22U

2017 2016

201745 20164

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARBTIT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ #& - 28L& IEIR S Fz 1,800 1,019
Performance related bonuses ERNARRATEAL 585 -
Equity-settled share option expense LAt A E BRI R 68 -
Pension scheme contributions RIRE B 102 94
2,555 1,113

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:

FHEN THBNIEEETIERSTH
ABHBEHIESHABMT :

2017 2016

20175 20164

Nil to HK$1,000,000 T LE1,000,00078 7T 1 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7= 1,500,000/ 7T - =
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017%7c £ 2,000,000/ 7T - =
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7L & 2,500,000 7T 1 =
2 2

During the year, share options were granted to two non-
director and non-chief executive highest paid employees
in respect of their services to the Group, further details
of which are included in the disclosures in note 29 to the
financial statements. The fair value of such options, which
has been recognised in the statement of profit or loss over
the vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant
and the amount included in the financial statements for
the current year is included in the above non-director and
non-chief executive highest paid employees’ remuneration
disclosures.

m China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2017

FR RAMBFEFTNTIFERRTHAER
M= HMEES AR EREEN RS
A EL AR R RO - RIS B B 7 R B
2O ET c ERRE B HETZE
BREZAABEINEBHNERR
MR - MAFEMBRR AT S
EFfALBFEFTTHERTHRAERR
RFEENFHEESD -



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MW RME (&)

31 December 2017
2017F12H31H

10.

Income Tax

Pursuant to the local rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands.

The Company’s subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong is
subject to income tax at the rate of 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profits. No provision for Hong Kong profit tax
has been provided as the Group did not generate any
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

The Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject
to income tax at a statutory rate of 25% on their respective
taxable income, except for Beijing Huaxia Lihong, which has
been identified as a “high and new technology enterprise”
and was entitled to a preferential income tax rate of 15% for
the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated
at the rate of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the
Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations

10. FRiE#

RERSHEREBEBRESHNE L
BRAINOER - AEBEBAGNTFRRES
HELRBHEBRESMEH

RATRBBTEMA LB B A RZAR
T8 i FE SR B F) 8 3216.5% A9 B R 48 40 T
13 o B 220174 &20165F12H31H
IEFE - REERBBINRE & ERFE
ABFE - W E BB RG T E B
1 o

XX B PA A B A A AR ST A B B A A
ATES B ERBRAIR2E%H E T
MEGHAEBR - L REE SIIERRIN -
HERERISHEMEE] REE
20174 201612 A31H I FE A ##
Z15% B EERT KBRS

Hitih @ BRFANE 2 RIBERERT
Eh - REBcRENRED  BAK
B EMENRDAE BRI IRITHR R

Vo

and practices in respect thereof. (=
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETTT

Current income tax BIHART 1S H5%

— Mainland China — At 6,946 3,264
— Elsewhere — Hfthih & 920 -
Deferred (note 20) BE (H15E20) 1,398 1,166
Tax charge for the year FAMIEZ H 8,434 4,430
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10. Income Tax (continued)

10. FrG% (&)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are

ERARRANRR REAXNZ BB AR
FERPDAE B RIAER R E A HE
F B IR ST B IR B R B R 5T B B IA R

domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as SEBRIA R ¢
follows:
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR#ETTT
Profit before tax o B A1)HE 43,137 38,058
Income tax charge at the statutory income B25% M EE TSR R E
tax rate of 25% B AT 1S B S 1 10,784 9,615
Effect of the preferential income tax rate TSR B R RA 2 (4,188) (2,493)
Tax losses not recognised RIEARN T IBER 1,576 400
Tax losses utilised from previous periods B HARREN A 2 R IE 1R (266) (2,440)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 2 353 286
Additional tax deduction for research and it 2% A 2 i R AR R IR
development expenditure (1,459) (540)
Effect of withholding tax on the distributable AEEH BRKTE QR A DK
profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries AMEFENFTE 1,111 500
Others =i 523 (798)
Tax charge for the year at the effective rate REBHETED
FERFHIERY 8,434 4,430
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11. Dividends 11. KR
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARETTT

Proposed final - RMB0.025 FEZEARHKE — Fh%
(2016: RMB0.025) per ordinary share TERAREE0.0257T

(20164 : AR¥0.0257T) 10,000 10,000

12.

On 23 March 2018, the board of directors proposed a final
dividend of RMBO0.025 per share totalling RMB10,000,000
for the year ended 31 December 2017. The proposed
final dividend is subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The proposed final cash dividend of RMB0.025 per
share totalling RMB10,000,000 for the year ended
31 December 2016 was approved by the Company’s
shareholders on 5 May 2017.

Earnings Per Share Attributable
to Ordinary Equity Holders of the
Parent

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 400,000,000 (2016: 347,123,287) in
issue during the year, as adjusted to reflect the rights issue
during the year.

The diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic
earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued
at no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

12.

R2018F3A23H  EE 2 EZ D K
H E2017F12A31 8 I FE & R H AL
BEEBRAR®ELT AXARK
10,000,0007T © EZEAMREBHFAR
AIRREEREREAFAS EHERA
AEE -

HZE2016F12A31HILEEMEZERX
HIR eSS/ ARK0.0257T (AFHA
R #10,000,0007T) B BAR A RER
201795 A5 B o

SBRREEERFREAR
EERAEF

BREARBFSCENIZG AR TRES
BFREABLEFERENEFANBETE
38 A% hn % - 19 £1400,000,0004% (2016
& :347,123,287/%) ;T E - HERAE
AR FEF AR o

BREERNDRARREBERTA
AREFRRNFAFAE ETE B
MEFHEEE - AR ESRER
BN RKHERETENNERRES
T ERREBRRRE D EEET
RSl RSl e
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12. Earnings Per Share Attributable
to Ordinary Equity Holders of the
Parent (continued)

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share
amount presented for the year ended 31 December 2017
in respect of a dilution because the impact of the share
options and shares under share award scheme outstanding
had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share
amount presented.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during the years ended 31 December 2016.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share
are based on:

12.

SFRREEERFE AR
EERAEF (F)

HE2017F12A31HIEFERINE
REXEBEESBEI RAABEMmEL A
B RESERERSZEITRMDEEB
EETROEMEFNERERERFE
HELERBEYE -

RNE E2016F12A31B IEEE » A&
B EDBEITNECESL B -

BREATSEAESRERNREER
A

2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFTR ARBETT

Earnings 27

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders ST E IR B R K S 2 R
of the parent, used in the basic and diluted BRI A R EimiE

s

PaN

earnings per share calculations FB AR 35,595 33,628
Number of shares
BHEE
2017 2016
20175 20164
Shares i gl

Weighted average number of ordinary shares &t & & A% 578 K #4655 22 Fi|
in issue during the year used in the basic RRIMFEANE 1T TR

and diluted earnings per share calculations HOAE 5 8 400,000,000 347,123,287
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13. Property, Plant and Equipment

13. Y% - BERRE

Electronic
Land and equipment Construction Leasehold
buildings Vehicles and others in progress improvements Total
EFRE
THRET BH REM ERIE HENERE CE
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETRT AR®TR AR%ETR ARBTT ARETR
31 December 2017 2017%12A31H
At 31 December 2016 and 2016512 A318
1 January 2017: 20171 A18 :
Cost XA 22,553 21,372 23,016 18,978 4,370 90,289
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (788) (15,228) (12,043) - (1,564)  (29,623)
Impairment RE - - - (1,028) - (1,028)
Net carrying amount REFE 21,765 6,144 10,973 17,950 2,806 59,638
At 1 January 2017, net of RW2017€1 818
accumulated depreciation MR 2 ERAA
and impairment 21,765 6,144 10,973 17,950 2,806 59,638
Additions WE - 1,674 5,393 51,056 - 58,123
Disposals HE - (49) (246) (2,350) - (2,645)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEEB AR (Hizs1)
(note 31) - 118 528 - - 646
Depreciation provided during ~ FRITERE (#/:76)
the year (note 6) (2,034) (2,344) (3,900) - (983) (9,261)
Transfers to investment BRERENE
properties (note 14) (hit14) (933) - - - - (933)
Transfers g 48,547 - 105 (48,778) 126 -
Impairment written off pERERific! - - - 1,028 - 1,028
Exchange realignment 5 AR - (20) (88) - - (108)
At 31 December 2017, net of 20176128318
acoumulated depreciation Nk 25HE 67,345 5,523 12,765 18,906 1,949 106,488
At 31 December 2017 M2017F12A31A :
Cost A 69,780 22,162 29,246 18,906 3,505 143,599
Accumulated depreciation ZEHiE (2,435) (16,639) (16,481) - (1,556)  (37,111)
Net carrying amount FEFE 67,345 5,523 12,765 18,906 1,949 106,488

HE2017F12A31H IEFE » KEE
BE—RBYF=FABAMEEZF B
HE A ARY37,657,0007C - REEBER
S8 ZEETFHZE-HREETE
WP BEZSUHEHRERBS A
B R R ERR  BEFOMEMS
EEEMARERS o

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
purchased two buildings from an independent third party
with a cash consideration of RMB37,657,000. These
buildings were pledged by this third party for certain
purpose before the transaction of purchase. The pledge has
not been released and the buildings’ property ownership
certificates have not been obtained as of the date of these
financial statements.
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20174 12H31H
13. Property, Plant and Equipment 13. % - BERXE (8)
(continued)
Electronic
Land and equipment  Construction Leasehold
buildings Vehicles  and others in progress  improvements Total
ET&E
T RET B REAM, ERIRE HENERE CHI
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT AR®TR ARETT ARETT
31 December 2016 2016F12A31H
At 31 December 2015 and 12015F12 A31B &
1 January 2016: 201651418 :
Cost AR 2,472 18,682 17,865 17,915 2,517 59,451
Accumulated depreciation REE (532) (12,815) (9,683) = (966)  (23,996)
Net carrying amount EHFE 1,940 5,867 8,182 17,915 1,551 35,455
At 1 January 2016, net of M2016E1A18
accumulated depreciation MK K:HTE 1,940 5,867 8,182 17,915 1,551 35,455
Additions NE = 2,690 5,825 21,777 1,595 31,887
Disposals e - - 91) - - 91)
Transfers (note 17) &R (Hi217) 20,081 = = (20,714) 330 (308)
Depreciation provided ERTERR (Hi26)
during the year (note 6) (256) (2,413) (2,943) - (670) (6,282)
Impairment (note 6) B (H1:16) - - - (1,028) - (1,028)
At 31 December 2016, net of 1201612 A31H
accumulated depreciation MK 2 MERBE
and impairment 21,765 6,144 10,973 17,950 2,806 59,638
At 31 December 2016: m2016%F12A310 :
Cost XA 22,553 21,372 23,016 18,978 4,370 90,289
Accumulated depreciation 2EiE (788) (15,228) (12,043) - (1,564) (29,623
Impairment yERED - - - (1,028) - (1,028)
Net carrying amount EHFE 21,765 6,144 10,973 17,950 2,806 59,638

The carrying amount of a construction in progress
exceeded its recoverable amount of RMB1,028,000 as at
31 December 2016. An impairment loss of RMB1,028,000
was recognised during the year ended 31 December 2016.
As at 31 December 2017, the impairment has been written
off as of the disposal of the related construction in progress.
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14. Investment Properties 14, BEYE
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Cost: B AR
At beginning of the year F1) 25,513 25,513
Transfer from owner-occupied properties HEEETIEEDE
(note 13) (K15£13) 1,320 -
At end of the year FR 26,833 25,513
Accumulated depreciation: ZHITE -
At beginning of the year F4] 3,231 2,020
Transfer from owner-occupied properties EERAETAREYE
(note 13) (K15%13) 387 —
Depreciation charge for the year (note 6) FAFEER (Hit6) 1,223 1,211
At end of the year FR 4,841 3,231
Net carrying amount: BREFE -
At beginning of the year F 1) 22,282 23,493
At end of the year FR 21,992 22,282
The Group’s investment properties were valued on 31 AEBHIZEMFENR2017F12H318
December 2017 based on valuations performed by Beijing REBYEXSEBRMGEMILRENE
JianHeXin Assets Appraisal Co., Ltd., an independent BEMNEAREERARRAFMSIR
professionally qualified valuer, at RMB29,375,000 (31 ERBEEMEREMBERARK
December 2016: RMB26,530,000), on an open market, 29,375,0007T (20165F12H31H : AR
existing use basis. #26,530,0007T) °
Certain of the Group’s investment properties with a carrying R2017F12A31H » K& B X 5 &
value of RMB21,071,000 were pledged to obtain a banking EY¥ (REEAARK21,071,000
facility from a bank amounting to RMB15,000,000 as at TT) ERER - UBRITEGARK
31 December 2017, which has not been utilised as at 31 15,000,0007T K R 17 &b 3 - M20174F
December 2017. 12A318 * ZFRITRBEARER ©
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31 December 2017
2017F12H31H

14. Investment Properties (continued)

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are
included in note 34(a) to the financial statements.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:

31 December 2017

14. REYX (&)

REMERKEHERTE=T §#
Bt ST N M SR M 5E34(a)

IRBEEER

TRUPARBRANEHR A BEE

BER :
2017612A31H

Fair value measurement using

RANQAABENE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
market inputs inputs
TEIR EETEE EETAEHE
TISHRE WABE [TPN ¢4
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(F—EHR) (B=EH) (F=ZEBHR) a5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBT AR®T T ARBTR
Investment properties LAY - - 29,375 29,375
31 December 2016 2016512H31H
Fair value measurement using
KANAREERE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
market inputs inputs
Vi B SEAER FEFTAHK
% MmE ]l A\ B 5 A\ SR
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(F—EB&R) (BZE&R) (B=E&) &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARBTT AREFTT AREFTT
Investment properties HEYH - - 26,530 26,530
FR - AREBEAENEERAREZ

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2016: Nil).
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15. AN T HESERE

15. Prepaid Land Lease Payments

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
R20174F 20164
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETIT
Carrying amount at beginning of the year FYEREE 10,608 10,894
Disposal HE (3,928) =
Amortisation for the year (note 6) FNEEE (Wite) (244) (286)
Carrying amount at end of the year FRIRAEE 6,436 10,608
Current portion included in prepayments, STAFENFIE - Re REM
deposits and other receivables (note 22) e U FRIE B BV ERER 9
(Hii#22) (238) (238)
Non-current portion JEBNER 2R > 6,198 10,370
16. Goodwill 16. E&
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
R2017F 20164
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
At beginning/end of the year: =
Cost and net carrying amount A K AR FHE 572 572
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31 December 2017
2017F12H31H

16.

Goodwill (continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through a business combination in 2012
is allocated to a regional service-rendering cash-generating
unit for impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of the regional service-rendering
cash-generating unit has been determined based on a value
in use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering a five-year period approved by
senior management. The discount rate applied to the cash
flow projections is 15%. The growth rate used to extrapolate
the cash flows of the regional service-rendering unit beyond
the five-year period is 2%.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of
the cash-generating unit. The following describes each key
assumption on which management has based its cash flow
projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margin — The basis used to determine
the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the
average gross margins achieved during the year, increased
for expected efficiency improvements and expected market
development.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

The values assigned to the key assumptions and the
discount rate are consistent with external information
sources.
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31 December 2017
2017F12H31H

17. Intangible Assets 17. B EE

Patents Software Total
=5 B4 a5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR%®Tr AR%®Tx
31 December 2017 2017%12H31H
Cost at 1 January 2017, net of 201741 A1 BRI -
accumulated amortisation s ZetEsy 8 812 820
Amortisation provided FNEEERE (Hi76)
during the year (note 6) (1) (87) (88)
At 31 December 2017, net of R2017%F12A318 -
accumulated amortisation s RatEsy 7 725 732
At 31 December 2017: MR2017F12 A31H
Cost %N 13 859 872
Accumulated amortisation RET Y (6) (134) (140)
Net carrying amount BREFE 7 725 732
Patents Software Total
=H ;i =
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT ARETET
31 December 2016 2016412 A31H
Cost at 1 January 2016, net of 201651 A1 BHR AN -
accumulated amortisation s Rty 9 41 50
Additions NE — 491 491
Transfer from construction in EETIRERE (f£13)
progress (note 13) - 303 303
Amortisation provided FNEIHERE (f6)
during the year (note 6) (1) (23) (24)
At 31 December 2016, net of R2016F12H318 -
accumulated amortisation HBR R 5T #ESH 8 812 820
At 31 December 2016: R2016F12 H31H
Cost BN 13 859 872
Accumulated amortisation 25T 5) (47) (62)
Net carrying amount BRESEE 8 812 820
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31 December 2017

20174128318
18. Investment in a Joint Venture 18. REELENKRE
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
H201745 R20164F
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Share of net assets JEIGEEFE 1,678 1,507

The Group’s trade and bills receivable balances due from
the joint venture and trade payable balances due to the joint
venture are disclosed in notes 21 and 25 to the financial
statements, respectively.

Particulars of the Group’s joint venture are as follows:

AEERKAEEDCENE HERKFER
W ERERURENEECENES
S IR R RIR B S sR R M 5521 &
25F IR EE o

AEBHASEREFBOAT ¢

Percentage of

Bt
Place of
Issued share registration Ownership Voting Profit Principal

Name capital and business interest power sharing activities
=L BETRA EMRERME e S ANEIK EEED
Guangzhou Lihong RMB The PRC 50 50 50 Coal, coke

Energy Testing 3,000,000 Mainland China and minerals

Technology Co., Ltd. AR HF inspection
M 7 98 B IR AR B il 3,000,0007T B A i BEIR - BBIK

BRAT R EY R

The following table lllustrates the financial information of the
Group’s joint venture that is not individually material:

TRIALKENSEDLE (ERTE
R) BB TEEHY -

2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMF T AR¥ETTT
Share of the joint venture’s profit for FE(HEEPEFERNFE

the year 171 7

Share of the joint venture’s total EheE XA NEETE
comprehensive income 171 7
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31 December 2017

20174124314
19. Investment in an Associate 19. REEEEPNKRE
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
120175 20164
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T
Share of net assets L EERE 3,108 -
The Group’s prepayments and other receivable balances 7N E2 B T8 N ERIE L FE ST B e D Sy E A
due to the associate are disclosed in note 22 to the financial FE W ZR TE 45 A A B 18 3R 3% Bt s 227
statements. 5 o
Particulars of the Group’s associate are as follows: NEB B EDESFIBNT -
Percentage of
Batk
Place of
Issued share registration Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name capital and business interest power sharing activities
=t ERITREA EMREFRE e SR MBI EEEH
Leon Intelligence & RMB The PRC 31 31 31 Technology,
Information (Beijing) 10,000,000 Mainland China Intelligent
Technology Co., Ltd. AR R management
HEBEE (ER) 10,000,000t FEIAM and system
MEBR AT development
il - BaeER
Zhuhai Runheyuan Technology Partnership, owned by the REBREHENKRSEHFRREAYE
Group’s employees, has 29% interests in this associate. PERZE S P ERHEE29% /L ©
The following table illustrates the financial information of the TREHPAEFENE <X (ERTE
Group’s associate that is not individually material: K) BT ER} -
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR¥EFTTT
Share of the associate’s profit for the year JFE 1 Bt 2 1> 2 A P F R 8 =
Share of the associate’s total JEMRE RN B
comprehensive income 8 -
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31 December 2017

20174124314
20. Deferred Tax 20. ELEHIIE
Deferred tax assets EEBBEEE
Provision for  Provision for
impairment of impairment of Accrued
trade construction employee
receivables in progress benefits Total
g5 RY HEIR FEst
FERERE HERE BERER CE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2016 201651 A18 114 - 2,380 2,494
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to Mk /(GEA) BEH
profit or loss (note 10) ERHA (#1:E10) 29 148 (843) (666)
At 31 December 2016 and R2016F12A318 &
1 January 2017 201741818 143 148 1,537 1,828
Deferred tax credited to STABRIORLETIR
profit or loss (note 10) (Hiz#10) (93) (148) (546) (787)
At 31 December 2017 R2017%12831H 50 - 991 1,041
The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of AEBRFEAEEENREAEERS
RMB1,857,000 (2016: RMB787,000) that will expire in one A R #1,857,0007T (201645 : A R #
to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits. 787,0007T) * R —ERAF ALK
SHAR IR ERBLAE ©
The Group also has tax losses arising in Hong Kong AEBENTREBREMBR R E
and other countries/regions of RMB4,448,000 (2016: A T IE B B A R 4,448,000 T (2016
RMB812,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting F: AR%812,0007T) * AIEHER AR
against future taxable profits of the companies in which AREEEEEL AN ERRKER
the losses arose. R o
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of ZEBEERNEEFER—BRERKNEAR
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have A BAEER R T AR LS HERD
been loss-making for some time and it is not considered w A AR R IR IR - F M R FERIE
probable that taxable profits will be available against which FEFRIABE °

the tax losses can be utilised.
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31 December 2017
2017F12H31H

20. EEHIE ()

20. Deferred Tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities

EEBHAE
2017 2016
20175 2016%F
Withholding Withholding
tax tax
SCEE R
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

At beginning of the year F9] 500 -
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss (note 10) & AIB=RIRLERIA (H#127710) 1,111 500
Transferred to current income tax (note 10) RS BATSH (F£10) (500) -
At end of the year FR 1,111 500

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and
the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the
applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore liable
for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2017, deferred tax liabilities of
RMB1,111,000 has been recognised for withholding taxes
that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of
RMB11,111,000 that are subject to withholding taxes of the
Group’s subsidiaries. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not
been recognised totalled approximately RMB80,530,000 at
31 December 2017 (2016: RMB55,163,000). In the opinion
of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will
distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

BEBERBECEEMERE) EFER
MK BINERE R ERIINHREES
kA% BB N10% TR - Z R T B
2008F1H1H ® A% - B @ A 12007
F12A31BEAEF) o fnd BH AN
B EEMEREEERE 2 HE] AH 5
WE - AIRAREMNFENBERE - LA
SEMmME ERABER/%HI0% °
gt AEBEEARPREAMKLZSE
BB A B #2008F1 A1 B REL AT
B 9 Ik O A% B 88 i TE 07 o

R2017F12831H K& BB 7 &
MAEBEN B AR KERZF AR
11,111,000 (BB W B ) X 7
MENHREREERBEBEARKE
1,111,0007T » 7201759128310 » &
RERELEHBEENPRAREWNE A
AIRERENEREZERQTLHAEA
R %80,530,0007T (20164 : A R #
55,163,0007T) - EER A ZEM B
NAIPTAKRAIBERAI R ARRDIRE BE A
F o

R 2% B [A) L R ER SEAF A A B 3 488 B 7 P
BHRRER -

-
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31 December 2017
2017F12H31H

21.

Trade and Bills Receivables

21. EZRWRERERERE

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

R20174F 20164

12A31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREFTT

Trade and bills receivables 2 S REINEIE K EWE R 22,894 22,876
Impairment VERIER (331) (817)
22,563 22,059

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly AEBHERTENRZKRAEEENE

on credit, except for new customers, where payment in
advance is normally required. The credit period is generally

three months. The Group seeks to maintain stri

over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its

ct control

trade receivable balances. Trade and bills receivables are B o

non-interest-bearing.

B EHEPATERBEMKEIN -
EHRER=EA  AEESRERE
HIREEEEFE - 2REEABEH
BZBANES AEEAARRE SR
RGBT B ERAER R EMERE
o B 5 EWER M EWREES &

An ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables, based on EREZAHEBEFRENE ZHEIK
the invoice date and net of provisions, is as follows: BN EREERERER T

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

R20175 20164

12A31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETFTT

Within 3 months 3E A AR 18,597 20,390

3 to 6 months 3Z61EA 2,411 990

6 months to 1 year 6EAZE1E 1,543 539

Over 1 year 1E A E 12 140

22,563 22,059
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31 December 2017
2017F12H31H

21.

Trade and Bills Receivables
(continued)

The movements in provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

21. H5BUGEARBRRE

(%)
85 ERFBAERENEDNT ;

2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARETT

At beginning of the year F 1) 817 759
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) BEERBEEIE (f/it6) 172 650
Reversal of impairment (note 6) WERE (Ki16) (385) (142)
Amount written off as uncollectible 1% $ 8 5 UK 0] /O 3R08 (273) (450)
At end of the year FR 331 817

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, no provisions for
individually impaired trade receivables were included in the
above provision for impairment of trade receivables.

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables that are
not considered to be impaired is as follows:

R20174F %2016512A31H - #E £ {
AIREE P ERFEREE WA LILE S
JEU R IE R B B o

3 B 1545 A% R0 (B H B 55 B MR IR e R MK
SEREDHTIT

As at As at

31 December 31 December
2017 2016
R2017F 20164
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Neither past due nor impaired A8 ER IR AR E 15,903 14,061
Less than 3 months past due w0 R 3E A 1,856 990
3 to 9 months past due #HI3ZE O H 1,417 526

19,176 15,577

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a number of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

AR EA TR AR E FY FE W AR IR B S T &Rl
WEBRFIBAELNEPHR
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31 December 2017
2017F12H31H

21. Trade and Bills Receivables
(continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
directors are of the opinion that no provision for impairment
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable.

The amount due from the Group’s joint venture included in
the trade and bills receivables is as follows:

21. EZRWRERERERE
(4&)

ERMERRE BKFIAES TBE
RASERERIFNBLEFPERM -
HRNEEERUEEREY  MxFH
SR AR 2BURE - BRBEBEL
% EERRBARZLFAERIELRE
Bt o

T AE 5 R UCGRIR N R M R 5 B R R
SEEERERAMT ¢

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

R20174 20164

12A31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BT ARETTT

Joint venture BERE 488 -

The above amount is unsecured and non-interest-bearing.

m China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2017

A ERIBEERKEAFE



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MW RME (&)

31 December 2017

20174128318
22. Prepayments, Deposits and Other 22, ENRIE - HERHAME
- ==
Receivables WK IE
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
H20174 20164
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARBFIT
Prepaid land lease payments (note 15) T T AR ERIE (HfaE15) 238 238
Prepayments TR IR 10,015 20,638
Deposits and other receivables & Kk H ith fE Y FRIAR 9,257 3,544
19,510 24,420
Portion classified as non-current assets DERIERBEENIH (929) (15,112)
18,581 9,308
The amount due from the Group’s associate included in ST TR FRIE K E th FE U5k T8 A e U AR
prepayments and other receivables is as follows: EEBMEPERBION :
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
H20175 20164
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Associate Bih s b2 871 =
The above amount is unsecured and non-interest-bearing. DA FERIBEEE R T E o
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31 December 2017
2017F12H31H

23. Available-For-Sale Investments

23. AJHEERE

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
20175 20164
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Bank financial products, at fair value RITE BLE m
(B2 EETYER) 21,300 9,000

The available-for-sale investments stated at fair value
represented financial products issued by banks. The
fair values of available-for-sale investments have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows
using rates currently available for instruments with similar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

AHEHERE (HAREEIIKR) HR
THRETEREM - IHHERENQ
REBEDRERRAEGRUER - 8
2B K I HAEY T A RIR1T A R3]
BHARBEZREAE -

24. Cash and Cash Equivalents and 24. BERBFESEBYURE
- =

Pledged Deposits KT
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
R201745F R20164F
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T
Cash and bank balances Re NIRTTES 48,791 63,450
Time deposits TE HifF 3K 397 812
49,188 64,262

Less: Time deposits pledged for B R TR E TR

construction in the process (397) (812)
Cash and cash equivalents BHeRIEEEEY 48,791 63,450

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history
of default.
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31 December 2017
2017F12H31H

24.

25.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and
Pledged Deposits (continued)

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies.
However, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Trade Payables

An ageing analysis of the trade payables based on the
invoice date is as follows:

24.

25.

BEeERRESEYURE
BHREX (&)

ARBETEEHRABRASEMER - R
o ARIE P B A e (O E B IR R B
K (HE - EENMNEERRE) K
SEEEEBREREETINERTFRR
TRARELREEMBER -

B 5 BAIE

1R85 2 A EIY B 5 R BB O BE B 5
T :

As at As at

31 December 31 December
2017 2016
R201745F 20164
12831H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

Within 3 months 3MEA R 3,650 4,487
3 to 6 months 3Z61#E A 1 59
6 months to 1 year 6EAZ=1F 8 -
1 to 2 years 12248 - 7
2 to 3 years 2FE3F - 59
Over 3 years BiAm3F 59 3

3,718 4,615

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on 90-day terms.

BHRNFETFE  BEERBRT
R0 E MR o
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31 December 2017
2017F12H31H

25. Trade Payables (continued)

25. EZENIE (F)

The amount due to the Group’s joint venture included in the MWAZE GENFTERNENRNERS &
trade payables is as follows: EXIAIW ] -

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

20175 20164

12831H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTTT

Joint venture SR - 326

The above amount is unsecured, non-interest-bearing and

has no fixed terms of settlement.

FAKIEEER - TR R BYEEELS

ty

= o
Ft 7

26. Advance From Customers, Other 26. EEBF - HWENRE

Payables and Accruals K FESTIEE

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

R20174F 20164

12831H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T AR®ETTT

Advance from customers RPN 1,569 526

Accrued salaries, wages and benefits fExtHe - TERET 9,025 12,185

Other taxes payable H i & 49 F 5K 755 491

Payable to vendors of plant, ERNKE - MER

property and equipment R EE I 14,930 13,089

Others HAih 5,392 2,266

31,671 28,557

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have no fixed

terms of settlement.
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31 December 2017
2017F12H31H

27. Interest-Bearing Bank Loans and
Other Borrowings

27. FIERITERKRHALERK

As at 31 December 2017

R2017E12A31H
Effective
interest  Maturity

rate (%) (year) RMB’000
ERF= HRR ARH
(%) (%) Tr

As at 31 December 2016

72016512 A431H
Effective
interest Maturity
rate (%) (year)  RMB’000

ERAIX R ARK
(%) (%) T

Current TEH
Current portion of long-term RERITERH
bank loans mEhEi D
— Unsecured — BIER 6.65 2018 6,045 = = =
Current portion of other HibfE
borrowing mENE D
~ Unsecured — BER 9.75 2018 16 - - -
6,061 =
Non-current FERE M
Long-term bank loans REBRTER
- Unsecured — EER 6.65 2020 10,112 - - -
Other borrowings HifER
- Unsecured — EIER 9.75 2020 19 - - -
- Unsecured — BER 4.75 2022 1,550 4.75 2018 10,000
11,681 10,000
17,742 10,000
Interest-bearing bank loans and other LA 5| S # &R &,
borrowings are denominated in: RITERREME :
- RMB - AR#% 17,707 10,000
-INR -HEE 35 -
17,742 10,000

B B RERIER G R A A

SR 169



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRmE (&)

31 December 2017

20174128318
27. Interest-Bearing Bank Loans and 27. ST EBITERRHEHMER
Other Borrowings (continued) (%)
The maturity profile of the bank loans and other borrowings RITERREMERN B AT
is as follows:
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
H201745 20164
12H831H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBFIT
Analysed into: wh:
Bank loans and other borrowings repayable FEEEBITERNEMBER
Within one year —F A EI Hf 6,061 -
In the second year REE —F 5 HA 6,477 10,000
In the third to fifth years, inclusive RE=ZZFAF
(EERME) I8 5,204 =
17,742 10,000

The Group’s other borrowing amounting to RMB1,550,000
as at 31 December 2017 was a loan from LEIl Xihu, the

non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary.

The Group’s other borrowing amounting to RMB10,000,000
as at 31 December 2016 was a loan from an independent

third party and was repaid in 2017.

The Group’s bank loans amounting to RMB16,157,000 as
at 31 December 2017 were guaranteed by LI Xiangli and

ZHANG Aiying.
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2017F12H31H

28. Share Capital 28. A

Shares B’ 14
2017 2016
201745 20164F
Number of Number of
shares Value shares Value
B8 E L & E BAE
’000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB’000
‘000 AR®ETT ‘000 ARETFIT
Issued and fully paid BT AR
ordinary shares T AR 400,000 131 400,000 131
A summary of movements in the Company's share capital AARHRASEHEZLNT -
is as follows:
2017 2016
20175 20164
Numbers of Numbers of
shares Share shares Share
in issue capital in issue capital
2®1T 22T
B8 E [N EnE4= [N
’000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB’000
‘000 AR®ETR ‘000 ARETFIT
At beginning of the year F1) 400,000 131 10 65
Share subdivision (i) %t #7 248() - - 199,990 =
Capitalisation issue of shares f&1n B AR EETT - - 100,000 33
Issue of shares (i) BT () - - 100,000 33
At end of the year FR 400,000 131 400,000 131
(i As at 18 June 2016, the Company subdivided one () R2016F6 188 @ AR A #51[% i%

13 ¥ 48 520,0000% f% 17 - & ik B
Fi1.0035 7T A8 FE B & & 1%0.000053%
TC - BB IRAE - BEIT RBREE

share into 20,000 shares and reduced par value from
US$1.00 each to US$0.00005 each accordingly. After the
share subdivision, total number of issued and fully paid

(i)

ordinary shares were increased to 200,000,000 shares of
US$0.00005 each.

The Company’s shares were listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited on 12 July 2016 and in connection
with the Company’s global offering, 100,000,000 ordinary
shares of US$0.00005 each were issued at a price
of HK$0.98 per share for a total cash consideration,
before expenses, of HK$98,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB84,356,000).

(i)

38 1% 42 2038 £200,000,0004% & A%
0.00005% TTHI A7

RRATRMDN20165E7 128 EEF B
BMAXSAARAR LT  BRAR
AMEREEMS AR AKRER
0.98% 7T | {& 1% %% 17100,000,0008%
FH%0.00005% TR E@L - BR €
& (R X A1) £98,000,0007% 7T
(FBE M ARE84,356,0007T) °
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29.

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of
the Scheme are only the Group’s employees. None of the
grantees of the share options is a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, nor an associate
of any of them. The Scheme became effective on 4 July
2017 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for certain years from that date.

For each grant, there are three unlocking dates, being the
expiry dates of the first anniversary, second anniversary and
third anniversary of the grant date, subject to the vesting
conditions and upon expiry of which, 30%, 30% and 40%
of the shares granted to each Scheme participant shall be
unlocked. The lock-up period is from the grant date to each
of the aforesaid unlocking dates, during which the disposal
of the trust benefit units is prohibited.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
20 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after a vesting period of one
to three years and ends on a date which is not later than
five years from the date of offer of the share options or the
expiry date of the Scheme, if earlier.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2017
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29. Share Option Scheme (continued) 29. BEBIRERE (&)
The following share options were outstanding under the FEREIRRESTEITE T B R 1TEHY B IS
Scheme during the year: J(U N
2017 2016
20175 2016%F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise  Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
InFEF9 NS
TEE BREHE TEE BEREHE
HK$ ’000 HK$ ‘000
BT ’000 BT '000
At 1 January M1A1R - - - -
Granted during the year FRIRT 1.28 8,000 = =
Forfeited during the year F AR U 1.28 (250) - -
At 31 December M12H31H 1.28 7,750 - -
No share options were exercised during the year (2016: Nil). F A IR TT 6 17 B8 A #E (20164
&) -
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29. Share Option Scheme (continued)

The exercise price and exercise periods of the options
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

2017

Number of options

Exercise price*

29. BT E (&)

RBEBRERTTENBRAENTTEE
RATEERGAT

20174

Exercise period

BREZE TEE* T8
’000 HK$ per share
’000 BTER
2,325 1.28 4 July 2018 to 3 July 2023 2018 7H4HZE2023F7H3H
2,325 1.28 4 July 2019 to 3 July 2024 201967848 £2024F7H3H
3,100 1.28 4 July 2020 to 3 July 2025 20207 H4H £2025%7H3H
7,750
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to . BRENTTEE R NI RATRR ST

adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other

similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year
was HK$2,720,000 (HK$0.34 each) (2016: Nil), of which the
Group recognised a share option expense of HK$724,000
(equivalent to RMB627,000) (2016: Nil) during the year

ended 31 December 2017.

A N AR A A R BB

A -

B ZE2017F12A31BILFE - FARAK
i B IR 2 A 7 (B E 42,720,000 7T
(FR%0.34/87T) (20164 : ) » HFFAK
£ B 7 52 B8 IR 9 S 724,0007%8 7T (A8

ENRARKEG27,0007T) (20164 : ££) o
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29.

30.

Share Option Scheme (continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
during the year was estimated as at the date of grant
using a binomial model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted. The
following table lists the inputs to the model used:

Dividend yield (%) 1.86
Expected volatility (%) 36.33
Historical volatility (%) 36.33
Risk-free interest rate (%) 1.79
Expected life of options (year) 5.00
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) 0.34

The expected life of the options is based on the historical
data over the past five years and is not necessarily indicative
of the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected
volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility
is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily
be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated
into the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
7,750,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme.
The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result
in the issue of 7,750,000 additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of HK$9,920,000
(equivalent to RMB8,292,000) (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 7,750,000 share options outstanding under
the Scheme, which represented approximately 1.9% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statements of
changes in equity for the current and prior years on pages
83 and 84 of these financial statements.

29.

30.

BIRERTE ()

REAR BB ARG SEENBEREN R
ABEDRELABER BRI
At W E R R R A SRR B MR A
TRINE T A REL A& A

A% S R (%) 1.86
T8 BRI 18 (%) 36.33
Jﬁﬁ*;;‘)ézma(%) 36.33

% ) 22 (%) 1.79
ﬁ%ﬂﬂ%@ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬂﬁ (%) 5.00
IEEFERE OB TER%) 0.34

BERENEHFREERNBELFNE
SRBESE > T TKRAEEREENAL
R o %EEH?&WE&@&TWEE?ME?E%*

RKBAHREK - BHrAEERER
— o
ARBEAEWIEBEMRTHER

RER E MR o

RBEER  ARRREBRETEIET
% B7,750,00010 R 17 {5 B8 IR 7 - R
RRARIREERER  2ETEKRTE
B B R R B B3 1T AN 2 R17,750,000
A% 58 S 3 AR K2 B8 IR 789,920,000%
7t (B E K A R #8,292,0007T) ($ Bk
BITRZAL) o

RZEMBHRERES 2B - AR AIEE
BE IR #E 5T 2l % 7,750,000 A& 1T 1E ﬁ%

kg (EARRRIRZBEERITRG
%91.9% o

&
AR B A RIBAE RS R
AL
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31.

Business Combination 31.

On 4 April 2017, Leon Overseas PTE. LTD., an indirectly
non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired a
total of a 80% equity interest in Nutech Surveyors & Analysts
Private Limited from K. S. Parthasarathi and S. Kalyani, two
independent third parties, at an aggregate consideration of
US$203,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB1,394,000).
Nutech Surveyors & Analysts Private Limited changed its
name to Leon Inspection & Testing India Private Limited on
8 December 2017.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Nutech Surveyors & Analysts Private Limited as at the date
of acquisition were as follows:

¥R L 01

R2017F4R48 » KRR —REHEFESE
EHiE A AlLeon Overseas PTE. LTD.
WM BIE =K. S. Parthasarathi
K&S. Kalyanifz Y & H # B #INutech
Surveyors & Analysts Private Limited
& HB0%KE = - 4 ¥ (B /R203,000%
T (8 E R A A K #1,394,0007T) °
201712 A88H ' Nutech Surveyors
& Analysts Private Limitedi§H ZfEE
2 AlLeon Inspection & Testing India
Private Limited °

Nutech Surveyors & Analysts Private
Limited W38 A BRI AT BRI E E R B &
WRAREEAT

Fair Value

recognised on

acquisition

T RS

AREE

Notes RMB’000

HraF ARB TR

Property, plant and equipment VI~ BB Rt 13 646

Trade receivables Z 5 e ERIE 405

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — JEfTFIE - &4 & H A e U k8 309

Cash and cash equivalents RERBFEEFEY 896

Trade payables 2 S RIE (18)
Other payables, advance from H b fERZRIE - BB

customer and accruals FEFTIEE (149)

Other borrowing E MR 32 (56)

Tax payable JE SR A 3K (181)

Deferred tax liabilities BELEHIBEE (3)

Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRAREEF=0#5

BEFEARE 1,849

Non-controlling interests FEFE IR A (370)

1,479

Gain on acquisition of a subsidiary U BE B B 2 B A Uk et 5 (85)

Total consideration FEEaE 1,394

Satisfied by cash AR & 2+ 1,394
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31. Business Combination (continued) 31. ¥¥K50t (&)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition ERBWERB AT ZRES RES T W0
of the subsidiary is as follows: T
For the
year ended
31 December
2017
BZE2017%
12A31ALEE
RMB’000
AR¥EF T
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FrERaiRe RIReEEY 896
Cash consideration HEHE (1,394)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of WEEHT B A RIAIR & MR %
the acquisition of a subsidiary LEYR L F5E (498)
Since the acquisition, the acquired company contributed BB &R - ﬁﬁﬂ&ﬁﬁ’&ﬁj?ﬁ'ﬂ&%%
approximately RMB1,911,000 to the Group’s revenue and Z\E BRAI A K #51,911,0007C + I &7
approximately RMB96,000 to the Group’s profit for the year SEHEZ2017512A8 31_5 IEFE & F
ended 31 December 2017. BRI ARNE96,0007T °
Had the acquisition taken place at the beginning of the B F AT - ARBEFARAR
year, the revenue of the Group and the profit after tax of i 1& I H%ﬁEIJZ%AE_%Zm ,444,000
the Group for the year would have been RMB201,444,000 7T R AKHE34,740,0007T °

and RMB34,740,000, respectively.
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32. Note to the Consolidated Statement 32. MEBHERERMEE

of Cash Flows

Changes in liabilities arising from financing MEITBHELENAEER L
activities
Bank loans
and other Interest
borrowings payable
RITEM
HAob & JFEAST A S,
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
At 1 January 2017 M2017F1 A1 B 10,000 1,210
Changes from financing cash flows MERSRENE L 7,686 (1,900)
Increase arising from acquisition of a U B B JB8 R ) EE AE 932 A
subsidiary (note 31) (#7a£31) 56 -
Interest expense (note 7) MBRZ (KaF7) - 690
At 31 December 2017 201712 H31H 17,742 -
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33. Pledge of Assets 33. EEEH
Details the Group’s pledged assets are included in notes B AAREEE E RSN B R
13 and 14 to the financial statements. KMFE13% 14 -
34. Operating Lease Arrangements 34. REHERH
(a) As lessor (@ ERLERAA
The Group leases its investment properties (note 14 AREBRESEHELHHER
to the financial statements) under operating lease wEMHE (MBERRWFE14) &
arrangements, with leases negotiated for a terms of HEENHAEER A FE2MUFE -

one to four years.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had total future MR2017F12A31H » AEBERE

minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable B2 E A B RT3 A9 A] BB AR & A

operating leases with its tenants falling due as #5051 B e 21 HA FE UL A R 2R B
follows: EBESBLELT -

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

201745 20164

12831H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBETIT

Within one year —F LA 365 519
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EERF (SEHEWF) 132 470
497 989
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34. Operating Lease Arrangements
(continued)

(b) Aslessee

The Group leases certain of its office premises, plant
and warehouses under operating lease arrangements.
Leases of the properties are negotiated for terms
ranging from one year to nine years.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

34. BedHERH (&)

(b) EREBAA

AEEREGEEERHAER
HAWRIBF - BERAE -
BRENYLEEERE—F2
HE -

R20175F12A31H » AEERE
TRAIREH AR E TR 4B N5 B 5
T ARFKERSAFTEOT :

As at As at

31 December 31 December
2017 2016
201745 20164
12831H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FT ARETT

Within one year —E A 5,537 5,795
In the second to fifth years, inclusive EFE_EZERF (EEEMTE) 11,985 15,187
After five years HFEAIE 3,127 2,733

20,649 23,715

35. Commitments

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
in note 34(b) above, the Group had the following capital
commitments as at 31 December 2017 and 2016:

35. &iE

B b ST E34(b) R AT s B A 2 70 E I
AN 2N 5= B 201745 K 2016512 A 31

BE#EA AT ERARE
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
R201745F R2016%F
12831H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARETT

Contracted, but not provided for: EHEENEESET-E
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB K&l

2,490 18,845
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36. Related Party Transactions 36. LIRS
(a) Transactions with related parties during the (a) FANBEBELIXRS :
year:
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FR ARETIT
Provision of testing service by A a1 FE R OB AR TS
a joint venture 350 308
Provision of technical services by B2 N BB (R AT AR 7S
an associate 3,184 -
Provision of testing service to M& & 1R HER RS
a joint venture 2,255 -
Loans to a fellow subsidiary* EIEEIGIEAEIEE - 5,000
(b) Outstanding balances with related parties: (b) EBEEFHKRELE:
Details of the outstanding balances with related HEELTNREZBERFTEER
parties are set out in notes 21, 22 and 25 to these ZEVBHREMEE21 - 2225 ©
financial statements.
(c) Guarantees with related parties*: (c) EBEEAER:
The Group’s bank loans amounting to 2017F 128318 » AEERIR
RMB16,157,000 as at 31 December 2017 were TEFR B ARK16,157,0007T -
guaranteed by LI Xiangli and ZHANG Aiying. AR & RE REDER o
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36. Related Party Transactions 36. BEEARRS (@)
(continued)
(d) Compensation of key management (d TEEZTEEEAENHE :
personnel of the Group:
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

Short-term employee benefits HHEE B EF 5,871 3,678
Pension scheme contributions RN ET BB 287 282
Equity-settled share option expense PARE 25 45 B A BE AR A 77 -
6,235 3,960
In the opinion of the directors, the transactions EXERR AEBRERT ZH
between the Group and the related parties were MR SRR 4977 2 [ R 155 5 A9
based on prices mutually agreed between the parties BRET INAFEHBERET
and conducted in the ordinary course of business. #EAT o
: These related party transactions also constitute N % BB R 5 B <<tm%,%
connected transactions or continuing connected Al) F1AAZ AT E 0 B2
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the HEFBEAER S
Listing Rules.
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37. Financial Instruments by Category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

37. REFEITNEMTA

REBEMER - FEREB T AR

instruments as at the end of the reporting periods are as HEZHF T :
follows:
Financial assets cREE
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
20175 20164
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTIT
Loans and receivables: ER KRR
Trade and bills receivables B 5 FEWGRIA K BN E IR 22,563 22,059
Financial assets included in prepayments, STAEMNEIE Be &k
deposits and other receivables Hih W R ITBEN SR E E 9,257 3,544
Pledged deposits [REEEGEES 397 812
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEEY 48,791 63,450
Available-for-sale financial assets: AHHESHEE
Available-for-sale investments AfEHERE 21,300 9,000
102,308 98,865
Financial liabilities cHAE
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
H2017F R20164F
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBFIT
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: BRHEKAFTEZERBE
Trade payables B S RN RIA 3,718 4,615
Financial liabilities included in advance from SABFE R
customers, other payables and accruals Hth fE 5 5RIE &
EFTTEEMESMAE 20,322 15,355
Interest-bearing bank loans and FTERITE R R EM AR
other borrowings 17,742 10,000
Interest payable FERTFILE - 1,210
41,782 31,180
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38. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy 38. AREERE®MITAAR
of Financial Instruments BENE?
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial rEEeRITANEEERAREE
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that (ZEFEEEEA AR BEAEHEEER
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows: HN) EFIET ¢
Carrying amounts Fair values
SR 8 AREE
As at 31 December As at 31 December
M12A31H M12A831H
2017 2016 2017 2016
20174 20164 20174 2016%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR AREBTIT AR¥TR ARETT
Financial assets SREE
Available-for-sale investments R HERE 21,300 9,000 21,300 9,000
Financial liabilities SRAas
Interest-bearing bank loans SEBRITERK
and other borrowings H i fE R 17,742 10,000 17,742 10,000
Interest payable JFE £~ FI| 2, - 1,210 - 1,210
17,742 11,210 17,742 11,210

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and bills
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, trade payables and
financial liabilities included in advance from customers,
other payables and accruals approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. At each reporting date, the finance department
analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation.
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38. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy

of Financial Instruments (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of interest-bearing bank loans and other
borrowings have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk for
interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings at 31
December 2017 was assessed to be insignificant.

The available-for-sale investments stated at fair value at the
end of the reporting period represented financial products
issued by banks. The fair values of the available-for-
sale investments have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities.

38.

N

o
T
o
(b
;]
H
s

TREENBENAABEAZIAR
BRXZTEMR S (MFFEHFE
HE

fAET AR BERERNK T IERRR

SAERITERREMETIRENR  EE
Rl ker TFHEENTREBAAA
WA R ARRBRRENTEH
NAEE - K R2017F12 A31
B AEEBE S ERITERRHEA
BRZENRBRIL TERX °

REBEHRUAABEZIINAIHEE
KREFARTETHNEREM - AL
ERENAABEREGER  FERRK
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38. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy 38. AREERE®MTAAR
of Financial Instruments (continued) BENESR (8)
Fair value hierarchy AREEER
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRHAPAEBESRH T AN AR EER
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: sEH
Assets measured at fair value: BAABHEGTENEE -
31 December 2017 2017%12H31H

Fair value measurement using
AREETRRA
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs Total
ER O EETBRE EETTH
TIS|ME BABE ZEWARE Gl

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

(F-B&) (F=BR) (F=ER)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®TRT AR®BTRE AR®TR

Available-for-sale investments ~ A[tHEHRE 21,300 - 21,300

31 December 2016 2016%F12H31H

Fair value measurement using
AR BEERA
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs Total
mE BZRAEHE B2 AEHE

MI5HE BWABIE RBEASUE G

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

(E—B&) (B-ER (F=ZBER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT AREBETT ARETE

Available-for-sale investments At H E5% 4 - 9,000 = 9,000
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38. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy

of Financial Instruments (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed

31 December 2017

HEALEEZRRE
2017%12A318

Fair value measurement using

DMREBEEFTERA
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
ER O EEUBRE EEFTH
TSHRE BABE =ZEWARE a5t
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(F—EB&) (FZEHR (F=ZBR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTRT AR%®TR AR%¥TxR
Interest-bearing bank loans and &t S RITE R M
other borrowings HE g - 17,742 - 17,742
31 December 2016 2016412 A31H
Fair value measurement using
AR BEFERA
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
R BZAHER  BEA AH
MI5HE WARE BRARE A&t
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(B—E&K) (FZBR) (F=ER)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®FTT AR®TT AR%TE
Interest-bearing other borrowing Efih 5+ B &K - 10,000 - 10,000
Interest payable FEAT 72 _ 1.210 _ 1.210
- 11,210 - 11,210
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39.

Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings, pledged
deposits and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade and bills receivables and
trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt
obligations with a floating interest rate.

The Group mitigates the risk by monitoring closely the
movements in interest rates and reviewing its banking
facilities regularly. The Group has not used any interest rate
swap to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 2017, approximately 91% of the
Group’s interest-bearing borrowings bore interest at floating
rates.
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39. Financial Risk Management 39. IKEBEERERBR
Objectives and Policies (continued) (&)
Interest rate risk (continued) Fl=@E by ()
As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s interest-bearing M2016F12A31H » KEBET EER
borrowing bore interest at a floating rate. LUFEIFIZEET B ©
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a TRYRTERAE E S SR T
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other MIERT AREENFAFE (BB
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax HEHANEETOTE) RAEERRER
(through the impact on floating rate borrowings) and the HAEAHRENASBEEHNBRLED
Group’s equity. T e
2017 20174
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) Increase/
in basis in profit (decrease)
points before tax in equity
HE% A0 s
#wmORd)  EmCEL) M CRD)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AR®T
RMB AR 1% (103) (87)
RMB AR (1%) 103 87
2016 2016%F
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) Increase/
in basis in profit (decrease)
points before tax in equity
BB AT A e
#®mOmd) S Cfd) g Cd)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T AREET T
RMB AR 1% (199) (169)
RMB AR (1%) 199 169
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39.

Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s businesses are principally located in Mainland
China and substantially all transactions are conducted in
RMB. As at 31 December 2017, cash and bank balances
of approximately RMB6,241,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB57,916,000) were denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
The fluctuations of the exchange rate of RMB against the
Hong Kong dollar could slightly affect the Group’s results
of operations.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in the exchange rate by 5%,

39.

ShEE ELRR

RE B A ZE TS £ B B ARE -
R2017%E12 A

DRHAARBHET -

Sil B

%g@@%&a%&ﬁ%

R HB

4 A R #6,241,0007T (7R2016

F12H318 : AR%¥57,916,0007T) &Y
Re KIRTTS iﬁ%t&i’éﬁ:%ﬂﬁ ARER

/E,TEEI/]E
HEAE o

R E)EEMR

T%@J/?Tﬁﬁfrﬁﬁﬁﬂ
ERT  AEERAANE (BREEE

éiﬁ $‘$ . E’j £«<

8 8 1245 R B K

with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit ENBEEH AL BESE) HERS%H
before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary A IBA[RE E BN RSB RAME DT ¢
assets and liabilities):
2017 20174
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) Increase/
in foreign in profit (decrease)
exchange rate before tax in equity
INERE = Al R xR
#/imCRL) B 0R2) & 062
% RMB’000
% ARET T
If RMB weakens against MARBHAETERE
the Hong Kong dollar 5% 215 279
If RMB strengthens against i AR ¥ ST HAHE
the Hong Kong dollar (5%) (215) (279)
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Mg EEEEREREE

39. Financial Risk Management

Objectives and Policies (continued) (£48)
Foreign currency risk (continued) IhEE R B (48 )
2016 20165
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) Increase/
in foreign in profit (decrease)
exchange rate before tax in equity
AN [ 2 R IRNINE s
#m, Cld) #m, Chd) #m, O
If RMB weakens against i AN REE B TTRE
the Hong Kong dollar 5% 1,255 2,708
If RMB strengthens against i AR BT HE
the Hong Kong dollar (5%) (1,255) (2,708)
Credit risk FERR
The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy AEEERERTMEERTNEGIER

parties. Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant. The credit quality of customers is assessed after
taking into account the customers’ financial position and
past experience with the customers.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, other receivables
and available-for-sale investments, arises from default of
the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty, and by geographical region. As at
31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group had concentration
of credit risk as 19% and 46% of its total trade and bills
receivables were due from its largest customer and 41%
and 65% of its total trade and bills receivables were due
from its top five customers, respectively.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade and bills receivables are
disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements.

HBIIRS - BRHBESERER A&
EEENERRRYLTA - £EEES
MBI REEFHNBELRE 7
HEPHEEEREHNG -

ﬁﬁlﬁméﬁﬁﬁ(&ﬁﬁé&ﬁ@
EEY EMRRRBARATHEER
ﬁ)%ﬁ%ﬂ MRS HTENSIRE - &
SRR EZETANEEEMRE -

HRAEBERER REERTFNE
=HETRS BRI IFE2HEEY -
ST EERRBEEF X5 EERIR
B IR @ 5 E IR o pA20174F K20164F
12A318 - A&EEEERRES - 1)
HREEZSEWRFIERENEERESD
DRIBE19% K46% KR BHZATF ARE
BoRWFIEREREEEE T AE
41% R65% KB ARE °

BERASEREE S REFIENEERE
BRELAEERRNE-FPEERER
BT R B 21 R ER o
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39. Financial Risk Management 390. BIEREEEERBE
Objectives and Policies (continued) (&)
Liquidity risk RENE R B
The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its AEBRMRHECTEAEBRELEITTE
ability to maintain adequate cash inflows from operations. W EFERESMARGES - RNEH
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at K ANEELRBE (RS RARELIRFZ
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual D) MEHBRM T

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

31 December 2017 2017%12A31H
In the
third to
Within In the fifth years,
one year second year inclusive Total
F=ZEEAHF
(BiEEE
—FR ETHF M) ast

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®TR AR®BTRE AR®TR

Trade payables 5 e IE 3,718 - - 3,718
Financial liabilities included in 5t AZPER « Hith
advance from customers, JERT FRIE N fEET IR
other payables and accruals ER:olea= =k 20,322 - - 20,322
Interest-bearing bank loans and &t S RITE R M
other borrowings E AR 6,061 6,477 5,204 17,742
Interest payment on bank loans $R1TE 5 & E A
and other borrowings fE sk F B AT 3R 895 480 447 1,822
30,996 6,957 5,651 43,604
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39.

Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)
31 December 2016

39.

Mg EEEEREREE
(%)

nBESRER (&)
20164F12A31H

In the
third to
Within In the fifth years,
one year second year inclusive Total
E=ZFAF
(BiEEE
—FRX F= M) &a&t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETET
Trade payables B o EMNFIE 4,615 - - 4,615
Financial liabilities included in STARFERER - HAith
advance from customers, JE S 5008 X B AT
other payables and accruals HEMSRABE 15,355 - - 15,355
Other borrowing HbER = 10,000 = 10,000
Interest payment on H b fERA
other borrowing FEAT K - 2,041 = 2,041
19,970 12,041 - 32,011
EXER

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016.

AEBEAEENEREANRRELRE
BREKERERRBREA L TMEE
h RMXFEREELRERRREESR
KAE »

AEBREELCEBSRED RIEBREED
ERSEHERTAREAREE - BT H
B AREAGE  AEBAARKN
FREMKE - MRRERESE ANk EETT
1A% o & £2017F KX2016F12H31H
HFE AEEVTEREETEEANE
B - BEREARFE ©
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39. Financial Risk Management 39.
Objectives and Policies (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by the capital plus net debt. The Group’s
policy is to maintain the gearing ratio below 70%. Net debt
includes trade payables, other payables and accruals,
interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings and
interest payable, less cash and cash equivalents. Capital
represents equity attributable to owners of the parent. The
gearing ratios at the end of reporting periods are as follows:

oIS ER R B R
(&)
BXREE (&)
$Elﬁﬁ,§$f§%’f LEREmER - BN
BELXREFREEFERUERINLEE
1%5%‘%?5’\]%%[1 c REEMBERARIEE
REBELERERTON BEFHEBIE
"’%fﬁ*” ﬁﬂﬂfﬁ KIE N FEET IR
CETRBRITERKEMES LA&F@EH
ﬂ_ﬂﬁ%&fﬁ EEY - EXETR
T%ﬁﬁ}\}ﬂﬂ*”\w :i&%iﬁﬁﬂ{iéf$i%
B =T

As at As at

31 December 31 December
2017 2016
R201745F 201645
12831H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBT T

Trade payables B 5N FIE 3,718 4,615

Other payables and accruals (note 26) H {th fE (S SRIE R FEETIE B
(Hiit26) 30,102 28,031

Interest-bearing bank loans and T ERITER R E M AR
other borrowings 17,742 10,000
Interest payable FES T 2 - 1,210
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B IR MBS HFEY (48,791) (63,450)
Net debt Tﬁﬁ}%ﬁ 2,771 (19,594)
Equity attributable to owners of the parent NEHEE ANEIGERS 195,206 171,650
Capital and net debt EANBEFE 197,977 152,056
Gearing ratio BRBEEE 1.40% (12.89%)
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40. AR 7B AR OR &R

40. Statement of Financial Position of
the Company

RBERREEARRFHRRAKNE

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BN
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
R2017F 20164
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®EFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M R k& 8 13
Investment in a subsidiary EKMB AT 52,343 55,570
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 52,351 55,583
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Deposits and other receivables B4 & H b fE W R IE 77,611 51,082
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREEFEEY 1,879 32,458
Total current assets MENE ERE 79,490 83,540
CURRENT LIABILITIES nREBEE
Other payables H fth fE 15 kI8 8,581 6,530
Total current liabilities mEN B EEE 8,581 6,530
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 70,909 77,010
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES ¥EEZEBRADAR 123,260 132,593
Net assets BEFE 123,260 132,593
EQUITY =
Share capital % 131 131
Reserves ERE 123,129 132,462
Total equity EESHARE 123,260 132,593

PR D PIES ST 195



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRmE (&)

31 December 2017
2017F12H31H

0 0 om0 — R ==
40. Statement of Financial Position of 40. XD T ERREK (&)
the Company (continued)
Note: BT 5T -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RARRBERELT :
Exchange
Capital fluctuation Accumulated
reserve reserve losses Total
EX
ERfGE HEN -4y 7 &5t
RMB'OQO RMB'O@ RMB'O@ RMB’O(ZO
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
As at 1 January 2016 R201651 /1R 51,224 - - 51,224
Loss for the year FREE - - (797) (797)
Other comprehensive income for the year:  FAEMEZEYE
Exchange differences related EINEBIABER
to foreign operations e = 7,390 = 7,390
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAZENHAE - 7,390 (797) 6,593
Issue of shares BIIRG 84,290 - - 84,290
Share issue expenses R EITHX (9,645) - - (9,645)
As at 31 December 2016 20165124318 &
and 1 January 2017 201741 A1H 125,869 7,390 (797) 132,462
Loss for the year ERER - - (2,561) (2,561)
Other comprehensive income for the year:  FAEMEZEYE
Exchange differences related INEBIAREER
to foreign operations 8 - (7,399) - (7,399)
Total comprehensive FRZENREHE
income for the year - (7,399) (2,561) (9,960)
Equity-settled share option arrangements R EmERIER 627 - - 627
As at 31 December 2017 R2017%12831H 126,496 (9) (3,358) 123,129
Approval of the Consolidated 4. FEBBHRREHE

41.

Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 March

2018.
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